
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Special Called Meeting
Board of Commissioners


May 30, 2013


 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette


County’s Website at www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then


“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single


topic can be heard.


                       


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in a Special Called Meeting on May 30, 2013 at 4:00 p.m.


in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman


Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow


Allen McCarty


Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator


Floyd Jones, County Clerk


Dennis Davenport, Interim County Attorney
_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order


Chairman Brown called the May 30, 2013 Special Called Meeting to order at 4:03 p.m.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


1) One Item of Pending Litigation


Commissioner Ognio moved to recess into Executive Session for pending litigation.  Commissioner Barlow


seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board of Commissioners recessed into Executive Session at 4:04 p.m. and returned to Official Session


at 5:30 p.m.


Return to Official Session and Authorization to Sign an Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Ognio moved


to exit Executive Session and for the Chairman to sign the affidavit.  Commissioner Oddo seconded the motion.  No


discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the Executive Session Affidavit, identified as


“Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Special Called Meeting
Action Agenda
May 30, 2013
Page Number 2


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner McCarty moved to adjourn the May 30, 2013 Special Called meeting.  Commissioner Barlow seconded


the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Fayette County Board of Commissioners adjourned the May 30, 2013 Special Called Meeting at 5:30 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________


      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,


Georgia, held on the 13th day of June 2013.


___________________________________


        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk








AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


June 13, 2013
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Recognition of three Fayette County students who have been selected to
represent the county in the Atlanta Regional Commission’s youth
leadership program, the Model Atlanta Regional Commission (MARC) for
the 2013-14 school year.


2. Presentation by Executive Director Pam McCollum concerning the
McIntosh Trail Community Service Board.


PUBLIC HEARING:


3. Public Hearing on the County’s proposed annual budget for Fiscal Year
2014 which begins July 1, 2013 and ends June 30, 2014.


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


4. Approval of staff’s request to renew the Application Service Provider (ASP)
Agreement with Tyler Technologies, Inc. for remote data hosting and
management of Fayette County’s MUNIS Applications, for a three-year
period beginning July 1, 2013 and ending June 30, 2016, at a cost of
$403,470.00, and authorization for the Chairman to execute said
agreement and related documents.


5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to purchase a policy for property and
casualty insurance with One Beacon Insurance for Fiscal Year 2014
through Public Risk Underwriters, at the price of $599,568, and for the
Chairman to sign the policy and related documents.


6. Approval of staff’s recommendation to renew a contract with Midwest
Employers Casualty Company, as outlined in “Option 3", for a period of
one year, beginning July 1, 2013 and expiring June 30, 2014, in the
amount of $98,528.00, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the
contract and related documents.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Dennis Davenport, Interim County


Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
June 13, 2013
Page Number 2


7. Approval of Resolution 2013-13 adopting the “Fayette County 2012 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact
Fees (FY2012), including Comprehensive Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvements
Element and Short-Term Work Program (FY2013-FY2017.)”


8. Approval of staff’s request to accept a grant in the amount of $150,491.00 awarded to the Griffin Judicial
Circuit Adult Felony Drug Court, and to authorize the Chairman to sign any grant related documentation.


9. Approval of staff’s recommendation to accept the 2012 Fire Act Grant in the amount of $191,373.00, to
authorize the expenditure of a 20% local matching fund in the amount of $47,843.00, and to authorize the
purchase of eight (8) advanced life support cardiac monitors in the amount of $239,216.00.


10. Approval of staff’s request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Town of Tyrone, allowing
for the County to resurface nine (9) roads over a three-year period of time within the Town of Tyrone, to
provide for labor and equipment at no cost to the Town of Tyrone, and to authorize the Chairman to execute
said request.


11. Approval of a request from the Fayette County Juvenile Court for authorization to file a grant application, on
behalf of the Fayette County Board of Commissioners, with the Governor’s Office for Children and Families,
and authorization for the Chairman to execute said application.


12. Approval of Sheriff Babb’s decision to dispose of the Fayette County Sheriff’s Office’s 2007 Eurocopter
S350B2 Helicopter, with proceeds from the sale or trade of this aircraft to be placed into Equitable Sharing
Funds to be used for law enforcement purposes.


13. Approval of Sheriff’ Babb’s decision to return a Fuel Truck, which was on loan to the Fayette County
Sheriff’s Office, to the Georgia Department of Public Safety Excess Property Program.


14. Approval of Sheriff Babb’s decision to dispose of numerous unusual uniforms and equipment items, and to
dispose of said items in an appropriate manner.


15. Approval of staff’s recommendation to dispose of turnout gear that is no longer serviceable and to donate
uniform pants and shirts to the Real Life Center.


16. Approval of staff’s recommendation to declare thirty (30) county vehicles as unserviceable, to sell the
unserviceable assets by utilizing the GovDeals internet web site, and for all proceeds to be returned to the
Vehicle Replacement Fund.


17. Approval of the May 23, 2013 Budget Meeting Minutes, the May 23, 2013 Board of Commissioners’
Meeting Minutes, and the May 30, 2013 Special Called Meeting Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


18. Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance concerning building height in
the General-Business (G-B) Zoning District.







Agenda
June 13, 2013
Page Number 3


NEW BUSINESS:


19. Consideration of the appointment of Deputy Fire Chief Tom Bartlett and Division Chief of EMS and
Administration Steve Folden to the Region Four Emergency Medical Services Council for a two-year term to
commence on July 1, 2013 and ending on June 30, 2015.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Recognition of three Fayette County students who have been selected to represent the county in the Atlanta Regional Commission's 


youth leadership program, the Model Atlanta Regional Commission (MARC) for the 2013-14 school year.


The Model Atlanta Regional Commission (MARC) program has been designed to include and engage metro area high-school students in 


key issues affecting the Atlanta region.  MARC participants learn about the past, present, and future regional issues both from community 


leaders and ARC experts.  They have the opportunity to learn about challenges such as transportation, air quality, human services, land 


use, water supply and water quality.  Using their knowledge, the students explore regional issues in committees and develop possible 


solutions to those challenges.  At their final meeting, patterned after an Atlanta Regional Commission Board meeting, they present and 


vote on the resolutions they have drafted to create a stronger, healthier Atlanta region.  The students then present their resolutions to the 


ARC Board for consideration.  Previous resolutions from earlier MARC classes include: 1) the creation of a program to collect soaps, 


shampoos, and toothpaste for distribution to homeless shelters, 2) a pilot program to test the feasibility of solar-powered traffic lights, 3) 


construction of sidewalks along major thoroughfares; and 4) a water conservation outreach campaign. 


 


Fayette County is pleased to recognize Mr. Harrison Gibbs a sophomore at Woodward Academy, Ms. Ellie Klarl a junior at Sandy Creek 


High School, and Ms. Amelia Trayor a sophomore at McIntosh High School; each of whom will represent Fayette County in the MARC 


program.  


Recognition of three Fayette County students who have been selected to represent the county in the Atlanta Regional Commission's 


youth leadership program, the Model Atlanta Regional Commission (MARC) for the 2013-14 school year.


Not Applicable.


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, June 13, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Commissioner Allen McCarty


Presentation by Executive Director Pam McCollum concerning the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board.


Commissioner Allen McCarty has asked Executive Director Pam McCollum to speak to the Board of Commissioners concerning the 


McIntosh Trail Community Service Board and its benefits for Fayette County. 


 


Currently, Fayette County has three citizens who have been appointed to the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board:  Reverend John 


Culbreath, Ken Schall, and Linda Lane.  


No action is required.  Executive Director Pam McCollum will give a presentation concerning the McIntosh Trail Community Service 


Board.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Presentation/RecognitionThursday, June 13, 2013







McIntosh Trail Community 
Service Board


www.mctrail.org







Who Are We??


• Public corporation


• Instrumentality of the State of Georgia


• Provider of mental health, developmental 
disabilities and addictive disease services


• Service area includes Butts, Fayette, Henry, 
Lamar, Pike, Spalding and Upson counties


• Accredited by Commission on Accreditation of 
Rehabilitation Facilities (CARF)







Governance Structure


• Fayette 3


• Spalding 3


• Henry 4


• Pike 1


• Butts 2


• Lamar 1


• Upson 1


• Community mental halth, 
mental retardations and 
substance abuse boards 
– creation, membership, 
participation of counties, 
transfer of powers and 
duties; alternate method 
of establishment; bylaws 
(OCGA 37-2-6)







Mission


The mission of McIntosh Trail Community 
Service Board is to offer individuals 
experiencing symptoms associated with 
mental illness, addictive disease and/or 
developmental disability the hope for 
optimal functioning by providing quality 
behavioral health services and supports.







How Are We Funded?


• Contract with Department 
of Behavioral Health and 
Developmental 
Disabilities (DBHDD) 
40%


• Medicaid and Medicare 
38%


• County 4.75%


• Fees, such as self pay, 
private insurance, 15%


• Other, inc. grants 2%


GIA


Medicaid


Fees


County


Other







How Are We staffed?


• McIntosh Trail CSB employs:
– 200 Full time


– 125 hourly staff through staffing agency


• Types of staff include:
– mental health professionals, 


– substance abuse professionals


– direct support specialists


– community support specialists


– registered nurses & LPN


– psychiatrists


– pharmacist


– paraprofessionals


– clerical and technical staff







Specific to Fayette County


22 employees work in 
Fayette County and 10 


individuals live in Fayette 
County and work for 


McIntosh Trail!  







Who Do We Serve?


• Children and Adolescents 
with severe emotional 
disturbance or substance 
abuse


• Adults with severe and 
persistent mental illness 
or addictive disease


• Adults with 
Developmental 
Disabilities


Adult
MH


Adult AD


C&A MH


C&A AD


DD







By The Numbers
Individuals Receiving Services


Fayette County


• Adults 579


• Youth 42


• Dev. Disability 35







What Is Mental Illness?
• A health condition that changes a person's 


thinking, feelings, or behavior (or 
combination) and that causes the person 
distress and difficulty in functioning.
(National Institute of Health)


• Diagnoses include:
– Depression


– Anxiety


– Schizophrenia


– Bi-polar







Statistics on Mental Illness


• 1 in 5 adults have a diagnosable mental disorder in a 
given year;  5-7% have a serious mental illness (NIMH).


• Annual economic, indirect cost of mental illnesses is 
estimated to be $79 billion- approximately $63 billion as 
a result of loss of productivity (Am. J of Psychiatry).


• Suicide is the third leading cause of death for people 15-
24 years of age (CDC).


• Approximately 50% of students with a mental disorder 
age 14 and older drop out of high school; this is the 
highest dropout rate of any disability group (NAMI).







What Mental Health Services Are 
Provided


In Fayette County?


• Fayette County 
Counseling Center
– Mental Health Evaluations


– Psychiatric Assessment 
and Medication Monitoring


– Individual, Family and 
Group Therapy


– Community Support 
Services







Mental Health - Specialty Services


• Peer Support


• Pine Woods Crisis Stabilization


• Residential Services


– Options


– VOA Structured Residential


– Personal Support


– Shelter-Plus Care


– Semi-Independent Living







Did You Know?


• Patty Duke and Jane 
Pauley report having a bi-
polar disorder.


• Abraham Lincoln suffered 
from severe and 
debilitating depression.


• Anthony Hopkins talks 
openly about his 
struggles with depression 
and alcoholism.







Definition of Addictive Disease


• Addictive disease disorders are 
characterized by the chronic use of a drug 
which usually result in 


– tolerance for the substance; 


– physical dependence, characterized by 
physiological symptoms; and 


– compulsive drug-seeking behavior, with 
chronic, regular, or intermittent use, despite 
possible harm to self or others. 







Addictive Disease Services 
Available in Fayette County


• Fayette County 
Counseling Center


– Substance Abuse 
Evaluations


– Nursing Assessment


– Psychiatric 
Assessment


– Group Counseling







New Choices – An Addictive 
Disease Treatment Facility for 


Women
• Specifically for 


women and children


• TANF and RFW


• Residential Services


• Treatment


• Child Care


• Jobs


• Aftercare







Did You Know?


• Treatment works


– Early treatment for mental 
illness has a success rate of 
60-80% compared to the 40-
60% success for surgical 
treatment of heart disease.


– Relapse rates are lower and 
compliance rates are higher 
for individuals with 
substance abuse compared 
to hypertension and asthma.







Chronic conditions that developed before 
age 22 and limit the ability to function 
mentally and/or physically. 


Developmental Disability -
Definition







Facts About Developmental 
Disabilities 


• Currently thought that prevalence is about 
3% of the population


• Many individuals with developmental 
disabilities have physical health problems


• With appropriate supports, individuals with 
developmental disabilities can:
– Work


– Live independently


– Volunteer







Developmental Disabilities 
Services in Fayette County


• Fayette Community 
Options


– Prevocational


– Community access


– Personal support


– Supported 
employment







Impact to Our Community


• People in Recovery:


– Are less likely to use acute care medical 
services


– Are less likely to become incarcerated


– More likely to get and keep a job


– More likely to live in stable housing


– Can be valued and contributing members of 
our community







Accessing Services


• Care Connection – 770-
358-5252 or Georgia 
Crisis Access Line – 1-
800-715-4225 for Mental 
Health


• Walk-in for crisis services


• Routine, emergent and 
urgent appointments


• Region 6 – 706-565-3611 
for Developmental 
Disabilities







Questions and Answers





		Commissioner- McIntosh Trail ...Board Agenda Request File

		Commissioner- McIntosh Trail Community Service Board Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Finance Mary S. Holland


Approval of staff's request to renew the Application Service Provider (ASP) Agreement with Tyler Technologies, Inc. for remote data 


hosting and management of Fayette County's MUNIS Applications, for a three-year period beginning July 1, 2013 and ending June 30, 


2016, at a cost of $403,470.00, and authorization for the Chairman to execute said agreement and related documents.


In 2007, Fayette County entered into a three year ASP agreement with Tyler Technologies to host and manage the County's MUNIS 


Applications from a remote data center.  In 2010, an amendment was executed and Fayette County entered into another three year ASP 


agreement.   


 


Tyler Technologies provides ongoing support, maintenance, backups, and upgrades of the applications, hardware and operations 


system.  Fayette County's current agreement expires June 30, 2013.  The renewal amendment is for a three-year period beginning July 


1, 2013 and expiring on June 30, 2016.   


 


The cost will remain level at $403, 470.00 for the three year period. 


Approval of staff's request to renew the Application Service Provider (ASP) Agreement with Tyler Technologies, Inc. for remote data 


hosting and management of Fayette County's MUNIS Applications from a remote data center, for a three-year period beginning July 1, 


2013 and ending June 30, 2016, at a cost of $403,470.00, and authorization for the Chairman to execute said agreement and related 


documents.


Funding for this agreement is included in the proposed FY2014 budget.


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, June 13, 2013







fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment A















fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment B













































































		Finance- ASP Renewal Agenda Request File

		Finance- ASP Renewal Backup

		Finance ASP Renewal Backup1

		Finance ASP Renewal Backup2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Finance Mary Holland


Approval of staff's request to accept a grant in the amount of $150,491.00 awarded to the Griffin Judicial Circuit Adult Felony Drug Court, 


and to authorize the Chairman to sign any grant related documentation.


For  FY 2013, the Griffin Judicial Circuit Adult Felony Drug Court received a same type reimbursement grant in the amount of $152,711.  


 


This grant awarded by the Accountability Court Funding Committee is effective July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2014. 


 


This grant is subject to the administrative rules established by the Criminal Justice Coordinating Council. 


 


No matching funds are required for acceptance of this grant.  


 


Approval of this grant will fund a full-time Program Coordinator, Contract services for Treatment Provider and Surveillance, part-time 


Program Coordinator, drug tests and associated operating supplies.


Approval of staff's request to accept the grant in the amount of $150,491.00 and to authorize the Chairman to sign any grant related 


documentation.


This is an increase to both revenues and expenditures with no impact to the bottom line.


Yes Thursday, November 15, 2012


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, June 13, 2013





















































































		Finance- Drug Court Fiscal Ye...Grant Agenda Request File

		Finance- Drug Court Fiscal Year 2014 Grant Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Administration / Finance Steve Rapson / Mary Holland


Public Hearing on the County's proposed annual budget for Fiscal Year 2014 which begins July 1, 2013 and ends June 30, 2014.


Two budget meetings have been held by the Board of Commissioners.  This is the first of two public hearing on the proposed budget, 


after which the Board will vote on the budget.  Details of the budget are available for public review.  Input is welcome. 


 


The second public hearing is scheduled for June 27, after which the Board is expected to vote. 


 


See attached information.


No action required.  At the end of the second public hearing on June 27, the Board will vote on the adoption of the proposed County 


annual budget.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, May 23, 2013


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Public HearingThursday, June 13, 2013







 
 


 


                                            NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 
  
Public hearings will be held by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County on its proposed 
budget for the upcoming 2014 Fiscal Year which begins July 1, 2013 and ends June 30, 2014. 
The first hearing will be held on June 13, 2013 and the second hearing will be held on June 27, 
2013. Both hearings will be held in the Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County 
Administrative Complex at 140 Stonewall Avenue West in Fayetteville, at 7 p.m. A summary of 
proposed appropriations for the County’s various funds as of June 3, 2013, including the Fayette 
County Water System, is as follows:  


       


GENERAL FUND:


General Government 8,272,906$         


Judicial System 4,817,271           


Public Safety 18,333,708         


Public Works 5,538,260           


Health and Welfare 769,120              


Culture and Recreation 2,075,620           


Planning & Development 1,233,852           


Debt Service 2,832,201           


Transfers to Other Funds 94,000                


TOTAL GENERAL FUND 43,966,938$       


SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS:


Law Library 62,160$              


State Confiscated Property 17,900                


Emergency Phone E-911 2,911,158           


Jail Surcharge 395,000              


Juvenile Supervision 24,971                


Victims Assistance 129,395              


Drug Abuse and Treatment 110,000              


Fire Services 8,237,995           


Street Lights 304,166              


EMS 3,291,432           


TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 15,484,177$       


CAPITAL/CIP PROJECTS FUNDS:


Capital Projects 592,725$            


CIP Projects 805,100              


TOTAL CAPITAL/CIP PROJECTS FUNDS 1,397,825$         


ENTERPRISE FUNDS:


Water System 14,714,266$       


Stormwater Management 500,000              


Solid Waste 195,894              


TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUNDS 15,410,160$       


TOTAL VEHICLE REPLACEMENT FUND 133,696$            


TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS 76,392,796$       
 


 


A copy of the proposed FY 2014 Fayette County Budget, including the proposed FY 2014 
budget for the Fayette County Water System, is available for public review in the Office of the 
Board of Commissioners located in Suite 100 of the Administrative Complex and at the Fayette 
County Public Library on Heritage Park Way in Fayetteville. The public is encouraged to attend 
the public hearings, and/or to submit written or oral comments or questions concerning the 
proposed budget. Information may be obtained by telephone at 770-305-5200, during normal 
business hours.                                                                            


 







Fayette County GA


FY 2014 Budget Hearing


June 13, 2013


1







Proposed FY2014 Budget 
Board of Commissioner Guidance & Direction


� Eliminate Deficit Budgeting


� Balance Budgets without using fund balance 


� Propose reductions that do not impact Service Delivery


� Assume no millage rate increase (Property Tax increase)


� Correct Healthcare Shortfall Budgeting


� Eliminate Defined Benefit Plan


� Instill fiscal and departmental accountability 


� Recapture Defined Benefit overfunding


2







Proposed FY2014 Budget 
Objectives Achieved


� No Deficit Budgeting1


� Budgets balanced without using fund balance1


� Reductions do not impact Service Delivery


� No millage rate increase (Slight Digest decrease)


� Healthcare fully funded (Claims & Run-outs)


� Defined Benefit Plan (Amended existing plan reducing future costs 
$493k year & implementing an irrevocable election option) 


� Fiscal accountability restored


� Recapture one (1) year Defined Benefit overfunding


� Incentive of 2% of salary one-time payment to County Employees
� Same level of service with less employees


� Incentive contingent upon meeting budget expectations


1FY2014 Solid Waste Budget uses $113k of residual $950k fund balance versus reducing services or increasing rates.


3







Proposed FY 2014 Budget Summary


4


 Estimated    


Fund Balance, 


6/30/13 


 FY 2014 


Revenues 


 FY 2014 


Expenditures 


 FY 2014    


Impact to Fund 


Balance 


 Projected    


Fund Balance, 


6/30/14 


Governmental Funds:


100 General Fund          28,469,400$     44,274,023$     43,966,938$     307,085$          28,776,485$     


Special Revenue funds


215 E-911 191,587            3,064,735         2,911,158         153,577            345,164            


270 Fire Services 2,143,561         8,323,500         8,237,995         85,505             2,229,066         


272 Emergency Medical Services 1,584,187         3,325,200         3,291,432         33,768             1,617,955         


205 Law Library Surcharge 48,494             63,000             62,160             840                  49,334             


210 State Confiscated Property 18,071             17,900             17,900             -                      18,071             


216 Jail Surcharge 939                  395,000            395,000            -                      939                  


217 Juvenile Supervision Surcharge 101,345            25,000             24,971             29                    101,374            


218 Victims Assistance Surcharge 84                    131,000            129,395            1,605               1,689               


219 Drug Abuse & Treatment Surcharge 120,530            132,000            110,000            22,000             142,530            


271 Street Lights 76,321             317,000            304,166            12,834             89,155             


Total Special Revenue Funds 4,285,119         15,794,335       15,484,177       310,158            4,595,277         


Capital/CIP Projects* 1,397,825         1,397,825         -                      -                      


Total Governmental Funds 32,754,519$     61,466,183$     60,848,940$     617,243$          33,371,762$     


Enterprise Funds:


505 Water System Net Assets 79,135,000       14,714,266       14,714,266       -                      79,135,000       


508 Stormwater Management Net Assets 74,000             500,000            500,000            -                      74,000             


540 Solid Waste & Recycling Net Assets 950,700            82,150             195,894            (113,744)           836,956            


Total Enterprise Funds 80,159,700$     15,296,416$     15,410,160$     (113,744)$         80,045,956$     


Vehicle/Equipment Replacement 350,000            133,696            216,304            


Total All Budgeted Funds 112,914,219$    77,112,599$     76,392,796$     719,803$          113,417,718$    


*Capital/CIP Projects sources of funding:


Transfers from General Fund 17,000$            


Transfers from Fire Services Fund 37,225             


Federal Grant 91,200             


Transfers from Capital/CIP Funds 1,252,400         


Total Capital/CIP projects 1,397,825$       


Budgeted Funds







FY 2014 Budget Calendar


� April 2013 Departmental Budget Review


� May 13th Budget Presentation to Board of Commissioners - 6:00 p.m. 


� May 23rd Budget Workshop with Board of Commissioners – 5:00 p.m.


� May 30th Budget Workshop with Board of Commissioners – 5:00 p.m. (Tentative)


� June 3rd Submission of Proposed 2014 Budget


� June 13th 1st Public Hearing on 2014 Budget – 7:00 p.m.


� June 27th 2nd Public Hearing and Adoption of 2014 Budget – 7:00 p.m. 


5







FY2014 Budget – Proposed Adjustments


6


Revenues 100 215 270 272 505


Description General E911 Fire EMS Water


Proposed FY2014 Budget $44,274,023 $3,064,735 $8,323,500 $3,325,200 $14,714,266


Operational (Re-occurring)
None


Revised FY2014 Budget $44,274,023 $3,064,735 $8,323,500 $3,325,200 $14,714,266


Expenditures 100 215 270 272 505


Description General E911 Fire EMS Water


Proposed FY2014 Budget $43,961,575 $2,911,158 $8,237,995 $3,291,432 $14,714,266


Operational (Re-occurring)
Imputed Adjustment $5,363


Revised FY2014 Budget $43,966,938 $2,911,158 $8,237,995 $3,291,432 $14,714,266


Fund Balance Impact $307,085 $153,577 $85,505 $33,768 $0







Proposed FY2014 Budget 
Highlights


� Budget calls for no property tax increase.


� Budget reductions do not impact existing service delivery.


� Budget reflects a fundamental correction to balance current year 
revenues with current year expenses


� Funds Healthcare projected run-outs and expected claims.


� Incorporates Defined Benefit Plan amendments.


� Maintains Employee Benefits:
� Medical/Dental/Vision Health Insurance


� Define Benefit / Contribution Plan


� Budget reflects what can be achieved by our respective Elected 
Officials, Constitutional Officers and Department Heads with a 
collaborative effort. 7







Fayette County GA


Thank you for your attention


8





		Finance- Fiscal Year 2014 Bud...aring Agenda Request File

		Finance- Fiscal Year 2014 Budget Public Hearing Backup

		Finance- Fiscal Year 2014 Budget Public Hearing Backup-1

		Finance- Fiscal Year 2014 Budget Public Hearing Backup-2








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Board of Commissioners Interim Fire Chief David Scarbrough


Consideration of the appointment of Deputy Fire Chief Tom Bartlett and Division Chief of EMS and Administration Steve Folden to the 


Region Four Emergency Medical Services Council for a two-year term to commence on July 1, 2013 and ending on June 30, 2015.


Interim Fire Chief David Scarbrough has recommended Interim Deputy Fire Chief Tom Bartlett and Division Chief of EMS and 


Administration Steve Folden to be reappointed to the Region Four EMS Council for another two-year term. 


 


The Region Four EMS Council is one of 10 such groups that represent the West Central Health District and is charged with administrative 


functions in the delivery of Emergency Medical Services and Trauma Care for this geographic area which includes Fayette County.  The 


Council is directly involved with assuring administrative and operational compliance with the legislative statutes, rules and regulations and 


policies and procedures of the Office of EMS under the Division of Public Health.  Operation issues include licensure of first responder 


and ambulance services as well as EMS and Paramedics, communication issues, medical protocols, training and education issues, EMS 


ambulance zones, trauma center designation and related programs to serve the public safety, public health, and emergency medical 


needs of the community in our designated district.  Fayette County has three seats on the Council.  The third seat is held by John Dunlap, 


but his term does not expire until next year. 


 


Both appointments under consideration are scheduled to expire on June 30, 2013.


Approval of the appointment of Deputy Fire Chief Tom Bartlett and Division Chief of EMS and Administration Steve Folden to the Region 


Four Emergency Medical Services Council for a two-year term to commence on July 1, 2013 and ending on June 30, 2015.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Interim Deputy Fire Chief Tom Bartlett was appointed by the Board to the Region Four EMS Council in April 2013 to fill an unexpired 


term.


New BusinessThursday, June 13, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fire and Emergency Services David J. Scarbrough


Approval of staff's recommendation to dispose of turnout gear that is no longer serviceable and to donate uniform pants and shirts to the 


Real Life Center.


Fire Services currently has 34 job shirts, 111 uniform shirts, 92 uniform pants, 23 white uniform shirts, 2 black uniform pants, 19 turnout 


coats, 21 turnout pants, 26 pairs of boots,  and 14 helmets.  These items are no longer usable due to their condition or they are over the 


10 year life span as recommended by NFPA turnout gear.   


 


These pieces are non-asset and are not tracked in the County inventory system since they have a short useful life.  In summary, Fayette 


County needs to dispose of this gear.  All patches and names have been removed from the uniforms.  Fire Services is seeking consent to 


dispose of unusable gear by appropriate means and to donate uniform pants and shirts to the Real Life Center which is a non-profit 


organization to help people in need. 


 


We are unable to send this gear to Georgia Forestry as has been done in the past, since this is not serviceable gear. 


 


Approval of staff's recommendation to dispose of turnout gear that is no longer serviceable and to donate uniform pants and shirts to the 


Real Life Center.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, June 13, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fire and Emergency Services David J. Scarbrough


Approval of staff's recommendation to accept the 2012 Fire Act Grant in the amount of $191,373.00, to authorize the expenditure of a 


20% local matching fund in the amount of $47,843.00, and to authorize the purchase of eight (8) advanced life support cardiac monitors 


in the amount of $239,216.00.


In 2012, Fire and Emergency Services applied for a competitive grant through the U.S. Fire Administration Fire Act Grant Program.  


Based on need, the department applied for $239,216.00 for the purchase of eight (8) advanced life support cardiac monitors for medic 


units and squads.  This grant will allow the department to replace aging cardiac monitors currently in use, and to standardize cardiac 


monitors in every medic truck and squad. 


 


The Fire Act Grant requires a local match of 20% of the total amount of the grant award.  The County match for this grant is $47,843.00.  


In the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the department was approved for the purchase of two (2) cardiac monitors in the amount of $51,000 


(Project No. 37230600-542520 3272B).  This request is for authorization to utilize $47,843.00 of the amount budgeted for the purchase of 


the two monitors for the match required by the grant, and for the Board of Commissioners to authorize the acceptance of the grant.  This 


will allow an expedited replacement of the cardiac monitors and result in an estimated savings of $191,373.00 (by utilizing the federal 


share grant) in the ultimate replacement of all monitors.


Approval of staff's recommendation to accept the 2012 Fire Act Grant in the amount of $191,373.00, to authorize the expenditure of a 


20% local matching fund in the amount of $47,843.00, and to authorize the purchase of eight (8) advanced life support cardiac monitors 


in the amount of $239,216.00.


Funding for this request is located in Project No. 37230600-542520 3272B, which has $51,000.00 currently budgeted for the purchase of 


two cardiac monitors.  By approving this request, the project will have a balance of $3,157.00.


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, June 13, 2013







fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment A



























































































fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment B









		Fire and EMS- Fire Act Grant ...itors Agenda Request File

		Fire and EMS- Fire Act Grant Application- Cardiac Monitors Backup

		Fire and EMS- Fire Act Grant Application- Cardiac Monitors Backup-1

		Fire and EMS- Fire Act Grant Application- Cardiac Monitors Backup-2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Fleet Maintenance Bill Lackey


Approval of staff's recommendation to declare thirty (30) county vehicles as unserviceable, to sell the unserviceable assets by utilizing the 


GovDeals internet web site, and for all proceeds to be returned to the Vehicle Replacement Fund.


Over the course last year, a total of 30 vehicles have either been turned into Fleet Maintenance as surplus and/or removed from service 


as a result of reaching their useful life.  These assets no longer serve the County's purposes. 


 


Vehicle list attached.


Approval of staff's recommendation to declare thirty (30) county vehicles as unserviceable, to sell the unserviceable assets by utilizing the 


GovDeals internet web site, and for all proceeds to be returned to the Vehicle Replacement Fund.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentThursday, June 13, 2013







YEAR VEHICLE TYPE MILEAGE NOTES


1999 FORD TAURUS 159,150 Engine Problems


1999 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 141,383 Transmission Issues


2001 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 133,007 Transmission Issues


1999 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 175,583 Transmission Issues


2005 FORD F-150 192,604 Transmission Issues


2004 CHEVY SILVERADO 205,751 Internal Engine Problems


2002 DODGE INTREPID 107,447 Surplused by Sheriff's Office


2006 PONTIAC GRAND PRIX GXP 118,995 Surplused by Sheriff's Office CID


2004 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 125,341 Surplused by Sheriff's Office


2007 DODGE CHARGER 79,780 Totaled in accident


2007 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 112,441 Surplused by Sheriff's Office


2004 FORD MUSTANG 106,880 Surplused by Sheriff's Office


2007 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 120,126 Surplused by Sheriff's Office


2005 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 115,000 Surplused by Sheriff's Office


2007 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 127,641 Surplused by Sheriff's Office


2007 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 124,119 Surplused by Sheriff's Office


2006 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 124,480 Surplused by Sheriff's Office


2007 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 131,306 Surplused by Sheriff's Office


2008 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 129,996 Surplused by Sheriff's Office


2007 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 112,084 Surplused by Sheriff's Office


2006 CHEVY IMPALA 111,934 Surplused by Sheriff's Office


2002 PONTIAC 109,979 Surplused by Sheriff's Office


2000 CHEVY VAN 99,973 Surplused by Sheriff's Office


2006 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 108,859 Surplused by Sheriff's Office


2007 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 105,852 Surplused by Sheriff's Office


2000 FORD F-150 127,517 Engine and Transmission Problems


2000 CHEVY S-10 98,614 Surplused by Sheriff's Office/Engineering


2001 FORD F-450 158,909 Needs engine (Diesel)


2003 FORD TAURUS 185,345 High Mileage/ECM/Electrical Problems


2003 FORD CROWN VICTORIA 160,839 Transmission Issues





		Fleet- Vehicle Disposal Agenda Request File

		Fleet- Vehicle Disposal Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Human Resources Lewis Patterson


Approval of staff's recommendation to renew a contract with Midwest Employers Casualty Company, as outlined under "Option 3", for a 


period of one year, beginning July 1, 2013 and expiring June 30, 2014, in the amount of $98,528.00, and authorization for the Chairman 


to sign the contract and related documents.


Fayette County's Workers Compensation coverage is a "self-insured" arrangement utilizing third parties for excess insurance and claims 


administration.  The County has utilized Midwest Employee Casualty Company for excess insurance and claims service since 2000.  The 


County switched from Underwriters' Safety and Claims, Inc. to Affinity Service Group on January 1, 2011 as the third party administrator 


for workers compensation claims administration. 


Atlantic General's broker, Quadrant Insurance, contacted the only four providers of this type of coverage in the United States: Midwest 


Employers Casualty Company, Safety National Insurance Company, Allianz Insurance Co/Munich Re, and Chartis/AIG Insurance 


Company.  The only quote received was from our current carrier, Midwest. The other three either refused to quote or were asking for as 


much as thirty years of claims history from the County before determining if they were even interested in submitting a quote.  It should be 


noted that this industry only enters into one year contracts due to the nature of the coverage being provided. 


Staff recommends a one year renewal with Midwest for excess insurance with a specific retention of $500,000 at a rate of .2788 per $100 


of payroll, at an annual cost of $98,528 as listed under option 3 on the attached backup.  This is a slight reduction from the current rate of 


$99,732 which is is a result of changing the specific retention from $400,000 to $500,000. 


 


Renewal rate specifics are attached for your review.


Approval of staff's recommendation to renew a contract with Midwest Employers Casualty Company, as outlined under "Option 3", for a 


period of one year, beginning July 1, 2013 and expiring June 30, 2014, in the amount of $98,528.00, and authorization for the Chairman 


to sign the contract and related documents.


These funds reside in the Workers Compensation Self-Insurance Fund.


Yes June 14, 2012


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Even though this request is budgeted and within my authority to approve, since we only had one vendor respond, I felt it prudent to bring 


it up in the public meeting for full disclosure and Board of Commissioner approval.


ConsentThursday, June 13, 2013







1


Lewis Patterson


From: Lori Smith


Sent: Friday, May 31, 2013 9:33 AM


To: Lewis Patterson


Subject: FW: Workers Comp Renewal


 


From: John Young [mailto:john@atlgen.net]  


Sent: Wednesday, May 29, 2013 1:52 PM 
To: Lori Smith 


Cc: jackie@atlgen.net 
Subject: RE: Workers Comp Renewal 


 
 


Dear Lori Smith & Lewis Patterson: 


 


May 29, 2013 


 


Re: MECC Renewal for Excess WC  Coverage. 


 


Good Morning 


 


I wanted to take the time to address the renewal information that I had sent you concerning the MECC Quotes.  First, the 


Quotes are firm quotes and may been bound on July 1, 2013 for the next term of 12 months from that date.  There will not be any 


Adjustments to these rates or premiums for the term of the policy, from the Company.  You may, however make or ask for changes 


to the  


Policy doing the term.   


 


In the last three years, Municipality Insurance has not had good experience with the Insurance Market. I have been discussing the 


future of  


This account and the future in general, of Self Funded Products. The quotes that you have before you, have given the County the 


options of choosing 


From several options.  As stated, the options have started to dwindle and become more restrictive.  The days of $400,000 -$450,000 


retentions are fading fast. 


The standard in the future will be $500,000 across the board due to the following conditions. 


 


1) Claims experience on Municipality business in general 


2) Medical Claims experience trending upward across the nation due to cost of Care from Hospitals & Providers 


3) Cut backs to Government budgets-this results in EE’s being laid off or dismissed-(Disability and WC claims are rising due to 


this factor). 


4) Large increase in WC claims filed by Fire-Police-EMT…resulting in longer claims cycle and ending with permanent Disability 


or ongoing WC Claims (3-5 years).  


 


Safety Mutual Insurance Company as sent me a indication of pricing for their company.  First, their minimum retention is $500,000 


for all class codes for WC. Second, they have indicated that 


Due to the claims from last year (firefighter-roof collapse claim) they would not entertain any pricing that would be below what the 


current carrier is proposing. Further, they would like to be 10-15% 


More in pricing for this account.  The other Carrier (Chartis / AIG) would not quote unless the risk was within 30 days of renewal, as 


they did not want to keep their quote good for more than 30 days, then 


They would like to re-price the account.  


 


Thank you, 


 







2


John Young 


 


 


 


John R. Young 


President 


Atlantic General Underwriters, Inc 


770 365 5543c 


770-692-2629p 


            

















		Human Resources- Midwest Cont...newal Agenda Request File

		Human Resources- Midwest Contract Renewal Backup

		2013 Renewal Email from John Young

		2013 Midwest Renewal Quote 6.13.2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Fayette County Juvenile Court Katie Cunningham, Clerk


Approval of a request from the Fayette County Juvenile Court for authorization to file a grant application, on behalf of the Fayette County 


Board of Commissioners, with the Governor's Office for Children and Families, and authorization for the Chairman to execute said 


application.


The Governor's office of Children and Families has released a one million dollar grant in support of recommendations made by the 


Special Council on Criminal Justice Reform.  The council recommended expanding access to effective community-based programs and 


practices that research demonstrates can reduce recidivism. 


 


The grant will provide the County the opportunity to develop and implement a therapeutic diversion program that would divert juveniles 


from entering the Juvenile Justice System or from further involvement in the system.  The Fayette County Juvenile Court has 


collaborated with the Department of Juvenile Justice and Grace Harbour Counseling Center to develop a community based program that 


would incorporate the evidence based programs supported by this grant. 


 


Each County can request up to $100,000 in grant funding and the grant award period covers 11 months, from August 1, 2013, through 


June 30, 2014. 


Approval of a request from the Fayette County Juvenile Court for authorization to file a grant application, on behalf of the Fayette County 


Board of Commissioners, with the Governor's Office for Children and Families, and authorization for the Chairman to execute said 


application.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentJune 13, 2013







Summary of Request for Proposal: 


 


The State of Georgia Governor’s Office for Children and 


Families recently released a juvenile accountability grant 


application that will provide funding, up to $100,000 for 


diversion and aftercare programs that aim to reduce the county’s 


annual commitment rate to the Department of Juvenile Justice and 


reduce the county’s annual number of Short Term Program (STP) 


sentences by at least 20%. The Fayette County Juvenile Court, in 


partnership with the Fayette County Department of Juvenile 


Justice and local community mental health provider, Grace 


Harbour, Inc., have begun to collaborate to submit a grant 


application that will reduce the total number of Fayette County 


youth commitments to the Department of Juvenile Justice and 


Short Term Program (STP) sentences by at least 20% in 2014. In 


order to accomplish this, a therapeutic diversion program is 


being proposed to divert juveniles from either entering the 


juvenile justice system or from further involvement in the 


system. By focusing on diversion/early intervention measures, 


this program will promote a positive relationship between youth, 


their family and their community, and reduce recidivism.   


Fayette County currently has 24,868 at risk youth. In 2011, 


Fayette County youth had 110 new instances of secure detention 


(RYDC), 10 total commitments, and 9 new instances of secure 







confinements. In 2012,   Fayette County had 5 total commitments 


and 8 STP admissions. The 2012 total felony commitments 


consisted of the following charges:  aggravated assault and 


battery. 


The overall format and design of the program consist of a 


community-based program which will allow participants to meet 


after school from 5:30pm until 7:00pm two nights per week on 


Tuesdays and Thursdays for 3 months or 12 weeks in duration. The 


program frequency will consists of two program cycles. In 


regards to program hours, each youth will receive a minimum of 


36 program hours.  Based on the State of Georgia published DJJ 


statistics for Fayette County in combination with local data and 


statistics, the potential target population for this proposed 


program will be Caucasian and African American males, in both 


middle and high school, age 13 and up.  This therapeutic 


diversion program will aim to service at least 36-45 Fayette 


County youth. The proposed evidenced-based curriculums that will 


be utilized in this therapeutic diversion program will consist 


of the 7 Challenges program, Thinking for a Change, and Trauma 


Focused CBT. 


The specific site where programming will occur with be the 


Fayette County Department of Juvenile Justice Office located at 


90 J Commerce Drive, Fayetteville, Georgia 30214.  The facility 


space at this location will easily accommodate both group and 







individual sessions. This location is both safe and convenient 


for youth and parents to receive services. The youth and parents 


presently meet with assigned DJJ probation officers at this 


location on a monthly basis.  


Furthermore, this collaboration will bring together system 


stakeholders, community leaders and residents to identify and 


access existing local resources for the development of a 


multifaceted response to divert the youth of Fayette County from 


the juvenile justice system, or prevent further involvement. 


This community-focused planning approach will allow maximum 


usage of available community resources and ensure broad 


community support.  







 


 


  
 


State of Georgia 
Governor’s Office for Children and Families 


“Uniting and empowering communities, so they can unite and empower families” 


 
2013 Request for Proposal (RFP) 


 


JUVENILE REINVESTMENT  


GRANT PROGRAM 
 
 


RFP Release Date: April 12, 2013 


Deadline for Proposal 
Submission: 


June 21, 2013 


Award Notification: July 22, 2013 


Return by Mail or Overnight 
Delivery: 


Governor’s Office for Children and Families  
55 Park Place NE, Suite 410 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303 
 
NO HAND DELIVERIES 


Contact Person: Joe Vignati 
Administrator 
Email: Joe.Vignati@children.ga.gov 
Phone: (404) 656-5183 



mailto:Joe.Vignati@children.ga.gov





Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


i  


 


Table of Contents 
 
 


1.  OVERVIEW ..................................................................................................................... 1 


1a. Introduction ............................................................................................................... 1 


1b. Purpose of the Request for Proposal (RFP) ............................................................... 1 


1c. Award Eligibility ......................................................................................................... 2 


1d. Grant Award Agreement ............................................................................................ 2 


1e. Reporting Requirements ............................................................................................ 3 


2.  PROGRAM DESIGN ....................................................................................................... 4 


2a. Program Purpose ....................................................................................................... 4 


2b. Program Requirements ............................................................................................ .6 


2c. Program Period .......................................................................................................... 6 


2d. Target Population ...................................................................................................... 6 


2e. Goals and Objectives .................................................................................................. 7 


2f. Performance Deliverables .......................................................................................... 9 


3.  PROPOSAL SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS ............................................................... 10 


3a. Number of Copies .................................................................................................... 10 


3b. Submission Date ...................................................................................................... 10 


3c. Disqualification Factors ........................................................................................... 10 


3d. Questions .................................................................................................................. 11 


4.  PROPOSAL NARRATIVE (11 Total Pages) ................................................................... 11 


4a. Statement of Need/Summary (½ page) ................................................................... 11 


4b. Administration (½ page) ........................................................................................ 12 


4c. Target Population (½ page) .................................................................................... 12 


4d. Methods and Procedures (6 pages) ......................................................................... 12 


4e. Goals, Objectives, and Evaluation (2 pages) ........................................................... 14 
    4f. Sustainability (½ page)…………………………………………………………………………………14 
    4g. Previous Accomplishments (1 page)………………………………………………………………14 
5.  FISCAL RESPONSIBILITY & PROPOSAL BUDGET WORKBOOK ........................... 15 


6.  APPLICATION ATTACHMENTS: APPLICATION FORMS, ASSURANCES, 
CERTIFICATIONS, AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ................................................ 17 


7.  FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY ACT .................. 18 


8.  SELECTION PROCESS ................................................................................................ 18 


9.  POST-AWARD REQUIRED ACTIVITIES ................................................................... 19 


9a. GOCF Grant Management Workshop ..................................................................... 19 


9b. Site Visits ................................................................................................................. 19 


9c. Additional Training, Technical Assistance, and Events .......................................... 19 


Application Submission Instructions ............................................................................... 18 


   







Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


ii  


 


Application Attachments: 
A-1  Application Face Sheet 
A-2  Program Timeline 
A-3  Memorandum(s) of Agreement (if applicable) 
A-4  Job Descriptions  
A-5  Forms, Assurances, and Certifications  
A-6  Applicant’s Financial Statements 
A-7  Not applicable for this offering 
A-8  Budget Workbook 


 
  







Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


  


 


1 


State of Georgia – Governor’s Office for Children and Families 
Juvenile Accountability Grant Program 


 
Request for Proposal 


1.  OVERVIEW 


 


1a. Introduction 
 


The mission of the Governor’s Office for Children and Families (GOCF) is to provide 
grants and technical assistance to communities to build their capacity to help improve 
outcomes for Georgia’s children, youth, and families.  GOCF’s Justice Division provides 
funding for programs that demonstrate a clear commitment to the accountability 
principles of restorative justice for youth 


 
1b. Purpose of the Request for Proposal (RFP) 


 
 In 2011, the Special Council on Criminal Justice Reform was formed to study Georgia’s 
criminal justice system and was charged by Governor Nathan Deal with recommending 
policy changes. On December 18th 2012, the Council released their report to the 
Governor-  
http://gov.georgia.gov/press-releases/2012-12-18/criminal-justice-reform-report-
released 
 
“We know there’s room for dramatic improvement in the results we see in the juvenile justice 


system.” – Governor Nathan Deal 


 
In keeping with Governor Deal’s goal of increasing public safety through a more 
effective juvenile system, the Governor’s Office for Children and Families offers this 
request for proposals seeking local juvenile justice projects focusing on a two-pronged 
approach: 
  


 Diversion 


 Aftercare/Re-entry 
 
For 2013, applicants are required to include evidence-based or evidence-informed 
program models that have been shown to reduce juvenile recidivism. 
 
High Priority will be given to applications that specifically formulate 
strategies that address reducing the applicant county’s annual commitment 
rate to the Department of Juvenile Justice and reducing the applicant 
county’s annual number of Short Term Program sentences.  
 
Applicants are encouraged to review the Office of Justice Program’s Crime Solutions 
website to ensure that their juvenile intervention proposal has a sound basis.   
This can be accessed at http://www.crimesolutions.gov . 



http://gov.georgia.gov/press-releases/2012-12-18/criminal-justice-reform-report-released

http://gov.georgia.gov/press-releases/2012-12-18/criminal-justice-reform-report-released

http://www.crimesolutions.gov/





Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


  


 


2 


The availability of funds is dependent on appropriations from the U.S. Department of 
Justice and the Georgia State Legislature. The Office reserves the right to reduce the 
amount of funds available based on government budgetary actions. 
The U.S. Department of Justice, Office of Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention, 
(CFDA 16.523 & 16.540) administers these funds at the national level. 
 
 


1c. Award Eligibility  
 


An eligible applicant must meet all of the following criteria: 


 Be a public government entity;  


 Serve as the fiscal agent for the grant and the point of contact to GOCF;  


 Be responsible, liable, and oversee financial, program, and post-award reporting 
requirements; 


 
Applications to support juvenile court projects must be made by county 
commissions/boards of commissioners on behalf of the juvenile court.  
Moreover, all local units of government are required to be in compliance with the 


Georgia Service Delivery Strategy Act in order to be eligible for state‐administered 
financial assistance.  


NOTE: Applicants are also eligible for funding through the Criminal Justice 
Coordinating Council and are strongly encouraged to apply directly to the Council 
at http://cjcc.georgia.gov/ . If a county is planning on applying for both streams 
of funding, applicants are required to highlight this in their proposal narrative, 
Section 4a-Statement of Need/Summary. 


 
 


1d. Grant Award Agreement 
 
Grant Award Amount: Applicants are applying for one year of funding through this 
RFP.  Applicants are eligible to apply for a maximum of $100,000 for this grant year, a 
11 month period. 
 
Grant Award Period: The grant award period covers 11 months, from August 1, 2013, 
through June 30, 2014.   All new or enhanced services must be fully implemented within 
sixty (60) days of the grant award agreement beginning date. 
 
Continuation Funding:  A continuation proposal is required annually.  An initial 
grant does not guarantee continued funding.  The annual submission allows grantees to 
improve or modify objectives or activities, as well as assess the performance of the 
previous year.  Continuation grants are awarded to applicants that demonstrate the 
following: 


 Professional management of grant funds and compliance with administrative 
requirements, 


 Accurate and prompt submission of required program and financial data and 
reports, 



http://cjcc.georgia.gov/





Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


  


 


3 


 Positive performance history with achievement of program goals and objectives, 
and 


 Continuation plan for their program. 
Please keep in mind that continuation funding is contingent on several factors including 
achievement of goals, organizational capacity, performance history, contractual 
compliance, and availability of funds.  
 
Modification of Funds: GOCF reserves the right to make changes to the application 
budget at the time of the grant award and will communicate any changes to the 
applicant.  GOCF may negotiate all or part of any proposed budget after award of the 
grant award agreement due to funding or program requirements provisions.  If, during 
the term of the grant award period, the funds appropriated are reduced or eliminated by 
the Georgia State Legislature or the US Department of Justice, GOCF may immediately 
reduce or terminate the grant award by written notice to the sub-grantee. 
 


1e. Reporting Requirements 
 
GOCF requires that sub-grantees comply with and fully participate in the financial, 
program, and evaluation reporting for this grant program. 
 
 Finance 
 
1. Performance Payment Request and Quarterly Report: Grantees must 


submit a performance payment request and report on a quarterly basis.  Reports 
are due within 30 days after the end of the quarter.  Payments will not be processed 
until programmatic reports have been approved. 


2. Grantees are required to maintain expenditure documentation such as timesheets, 
equipment purchases, travel logs, supply purchases, inventory records, and 
consultant contracts.  This documentation may be requested at any time. 


3. Grantees must attend any scheduled grant management workshop (if required) 
prior to the release of grant funds. 
 


Program  


 
1. Notice of Implementation: This notice must be submitted within 60 days of the 


grant award, documenting the implementation of the full project. 
2. Planning Period: In order to allow for successful integration of these evidence-


based services into court operations, GOCF is allowing a 2 month planning period 
for each local project. This will allow time for staff to be hired, trained, and contracts 
with service providers to be established. The planning period is optional and all 
projects must be operational no later than October 1, 2013. 


3. Program Status Reports Grantees are required to submit accurate and timely 
program reports. Grantees must remain current with their reporting as a 
requirement prior to payment.  Grantees must submit reports via US Mail or e-mail: 


  







Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


  


 


4 


Quarterly Progress Reports: Quarterly Progress Reports are to be submitted to 
GOCF within 30 days after the end of each quarter.  
 
Final Report: The Final Report is due at the end of the grant award period.  This 
report must be received and approved prior to the release of the final payment.  The 
final report is due no later than July 31, 2014. 
 
 
 
Evaluation  
 
GOCF will conduct a rigorous study of grantee programs to determine effectiveness. 
Grantees will have the following roles and responsibilities within the evaluation: 


1. Collect, enter, and maintain participant-level implementation and outcome 
data. 


2. Submit youth enrollment, activity attendance, and necessary reports to 
evaluator. 


3. Must participate if chosen as a focus site for evaluation. 
 


2.  PROGRAM DESIGN 


 
2a. Program Purpose 


 
In order to demonstrate potential cost-savings to taxpayers by incentivizing evidence-
based options, the overarching goal of this offering is the reduction of felony 
commitments to the Department of Juvenile Justice and Short-Term 
Program sentences. Applicants are asked to select from one of the two following 
program types, based on the needs of their community. 
 


Diversion 
 
Provide grant funding for local programs designed to divert juveniles from entering the 
juvenile justice system OR preventing further involvement. Youth indicating the need 
for services based on a standardized risk/needs assessment will be referred to the 
appropriate evidence-based intervention(s). 
By focusing on diversion/early intervention measures, these programs will promote a 
positive relationship between the youth, their family and their community, and reduce 
recidivism. Please refer to Section 2.d. for a detailed description of expected targeted 
Diversion population. 
 
Communities applying for these funds will be expected to bring together system 
stakeholders, community leaders and residents to identify and access existing local 
resources for the development of a multifaceted response to divert youth from the 
system, or prevent further involvement. This community-focused planning approach 







Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


  


 


5 


will allow for the maximum usage of available community resources and ensure broad 
community support.  
Part of this planning process will include a requirement for both judicial & 
Department of Juvenile Justice support of the programming through the execution of a 
pre-award MOU. 
 
 
 


Aftercare/Re-entry 
 
Provide grant funding for programs to prepare incarcerated juvenile offenders for 
successful return to their communities. For the purposes of this plan; incarcerated shall 
be defined as any juvenile serving a period of secure confinement in a juvenile 
correctional facility (Youth Development Campus) OR youth who have been adjudicated 
for a designated felony offense.  
Youth indicating a need for services based on a standardized risk/needs assessment will 
be referred to the appropriate evidence-based intervention(s). 
By focusing on preparing youth for release and providing a continuum of community 
support services and supervision after release, these aftercare programs promote a 
positive relationship between the youth and the community and reduce recidivism. 
Please refer to Section 2.d. for a detailed description of expected targeted Aftercare/Re-
entry population. 
 
Support services will include, as necessary, basic life skills, job skills & employment 
training, job placement, GED Support, as well as providing mentoring/apprenticeship 
opportunities for youth participating in the program. Applicants interested in applying 
for funding in the Aftercare/Re-entry program area are encouraged to contact the 
Clayton County Juvenile Court and model their application on Clayton’s 2nd Chance 
Court for youth charged with a designated felony. 
 
Communities applying for these funds will be expected to bring together system 
stakeholders, community leaders and residents to identify and access existing local 
resources for the development of a multifaceted response for the juvenile re-entry 
population. This community-focused planning approach will allow for the maximum 
usage of available community resources and ensure broad community support.  
Part of this planning process will include a requirement for both judicial & 
Department of Juvenile Justice support of the programming through the execution of a 
pre-award MOU. 
 
GOCF asks that applicants fully describe how their project will reduce risk factors of 
participants through the use of an evidence-based model that addresses family 
engagement, reduces negative peer association, increases pro-social activities, and is 
tailored to the individual cognitive and maturational levels of their participants. 


 
 
 







Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


  


 


6 


2b. Program Requirements 
 
Religion 
Grantee programs may not promote, discuss, or teach religion.  Program activities and 
services are required to be accessible to any interested participant, regardless of 
religious affiliation.  
 
Criminal Background Checks 
 
All Grantees must conduct state criminal background checks on all personnel who will 
have direct contact with youth served by the grant project.  These background checks 
must take place prior to the provision of services by program personnel and the sub-
grantee must maintain a copy of these records for GOCF auditing purposes. 
 
Internet Security Policy 
GOCF requires all sub-grantees to establish and enforce an Internet Security Policy 
when minor participants and/or staff have access (supervised or unsupervised) to the 
Internet.  This includes any technology provided by GOCF funding and technology 
utilized by participants during a GOCF funded program component.    
 
Other 
 
Applicants must comply with all forms, assurances, and certifications attached to this 
RFP. 
 
Projects may not provide incentives (e.g., trophies/plaques, rewards for individual 
accomplishments, gift certificates, gas cards, etc.). Items such as motivational tools, 
training aids, and educational materials may be purchased. These items must be 
provided to all participants. 
 
Projects are allowed to provide food/snacks to all participants as part of a “substantial 
work” activity. 
 
 


2c. Program Period  
 


The initial grant award period is August 1, 2013 –June 30, 2014.  


 
2d.Target Populations 


 
Diversion- Youth who have been referred to juvenile court for a felony charge that 
would result in possible commitment to Department of Juvenile Justice or youth who 
would have previously been sentenced to the Short-Term Program. 
 







Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


  


 


7 


Aftercare/Re-entry- Any juvenile serving a period of secure confinement in a juvenile 
correctional facility (Youth Development Campus) OR who has been adjudicated for a 
designated felony offense. 
 


2e. Goals and Objectives 
 
Each applicant must utilize the following goals and objectives for its project.  Applicants 
may add additional goals or objectives specific to their program. 


 
 
Goals  
 
1. Reduce felony commitments to Department of Juvenile Justice and Short Term 


Program (STP) sentences in target county. 
 


2. Increase the use of evidence-based practices in Georgia's juvenile justice system by 
initiating community-based juvenile justice programs. 


 
3. Reduce the recidivism rate of youth involved with Georgia's juvenile justice system.  


 
4. Reduce annual secure detention rate of target county  
 
5. Reduce annual secure confinement rate of target county. 


 
6. Demonstrate a cost-savings to citizens of Georgia through provision of research-


informed services to youth in juvenile justice system. 
 


Performance Objectives 
 
All Projects 


 
1. Project will demonstrate 20% reduction in TOTAL number of annual felony 


commitments to DJJ and Short Term Program (STP) sentences (counties can find 
FY 2012 numbers in order to calculate target at 
http://juveniledata.georgia.gov/RgpReports.aspx?report=2012DataTargets ). 
 


2. Project will report an increase in: 
a. number of evidence-based services over previous year  
b. overall percentage of court’s evidence-based programs  


 
 
Diversion Project Objectives 
 


 Project will demonstrate reduction in annual Secure Detention rate. 


 At least 75% of project participants will complete program requirements. 



http://juveniledata.georgia.gov/RgpReports.aspx?report=2012DataTargets





Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


  


 


8 


 At least 80% of youth completing services will not re-offend as calculated using 
recidivism definition. As defined by: A new charge (within 3 years of the initial 
post-adjudication community placement) which results in a juvenile court 
delinquency adjudication OR adult criminal court conviction. 


 Project will report cost-savings per youth by calculating average cost to provide 
targeted intervention subtracted from average cost to detain youth.  
(Selected projects will be provided a marginal cost rate in order to perform this 
calculation). 


 
 
 
Aftercare/Re-Entry Project Objectives 
 


 Project will demonstrate a 20% reduction in annual Secure Confinement rate.  


 (counties can find FY 2012 numbers in order to calculate target at 
http://juveniledata.georgia.gov/RgpReports.aspx?report=2012DataTargets ). 


  At least 75% of project participants will complete program requirements.  


 At least 55% of youth completing services will not re-offend as calculated using 
recidivism definition.  As defined by: A new charge (within 3 years of the initial 
post-adjudication community placement) which results in a juvenile court 
delinquency adjudication OR adult criminal court conviction. 


 Project will report annual cost-savings per youth by calculating average cost to 
provide targeted intervention subtracted from average cost to securely confine 
youth. (Selected projects will be provided a marginal cost rate in order to perform 
this calculation). 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



http://juveniledata.georgia.gov/RgpReports.aspx?report=2012DataTargets





Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


  


 


9 


2f. Performance Deliverables 
 


REPORTING 
PERIOD  


 
 


PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS 
  


 
DUE ON OR 


BEFORE THE 
FOLLOWING 


DATES 
 


Initial 
Allotment 


 


 Fully executed grant award agreement and attachments 
 Submission of Judicial/DJJ MOU 


 
9/2/2013 


 
FIRST 


 PERIOD 


 
10/1/2013-12/31/2013: 
 Quarterly Progress Report-including performance 


objectives 
 Submission of performance payment request 
 Attendance at GOCF Grant Management Workshop 


  


 
1/31/2014 


 
SECOND 
PERIOD 


 
1/01/14-3/31/14 Reporting Period:  
 Quarterly Progress Report-including performance 


objectives 
 Submission of performance payment request and match 


report 
 5% reduction in felony commitments to DJJ and 


sentences to Short Term Program achieved 


 
4/30/14 


 
FINAL 


 PERIOD 


 
4/01/14-06/30/14 Reporting Period: 


 Quarterly of Final Progress Report- including 
performance objectives 


 Submission of performance payment request and 
match report 


 
* 20% reduction in felony commitments to DJJ 
and sentences to Short Term Program achieved. 


 


 


 
7/31/14 


 


*For any deliverable not met and reported by the due date, GOCF retains the right to issue a 5% reduction for the 


payment associated with the reporting period. For repeated non-compliance with the deliverables and payment 


schedule, GOCF may add an additional 2.5% penalty for each additional reporting period in which a deliverable is not 


completed within the prescribed timeline. 


 







Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


  


 


10 


3.  PROPOSAL SUBMISSION INSTRUCTIONS 


 


 3a. Number of Copies 
 
One (1) original application must be submitted at the time of initial submission to 
include: application narrative, application budget request in Excel format, application 
attachments with all signature pages signed in blue ink, 5 additional copies, and 
one (1) electronic copy.  All of the aforementioned proposal documents are also 
required to be submitted on a CD, which will serve as the electronic submission.  
Assemble the original printed application with a binder clip.  The application must 
follow the outline as described on page 19 of this RFP, beginning with the application 
face sheet (Attachment A-1).  The proposal package must be completed and submitted in 
accordance with RFP section 3b. and 3c. or the proposal will be disqualified. 


 
 3b. Submission Date 


 
Applications must be postmarked by June 21, 2013 and must include the original 
signature of the executive officer of the applicant on the application face sheet.  
Applications postmarked after that date will be classified as late and will not be 
considered for funding.  Applicants are cautioned to request a legibly dated United 
States Postal Service postmark or receipt, or to obtain a legibly dated receipt from a 
commercial carrier.  GOCF will not accept office-metered postmarks, faxed, 
hand-delivered, or e-mailed applications.  The mailing address for applications is 
below: 
 


Governor’s Office for Children and Families 
Juvenile Reinvestment RFP 
55 Park Place NE, Suite 410 
Atlanta, Georgia 30303-2529 
 


 3c. Disqualification Factors 
   


Any application post-marked after the June 21, 2013 deadline will be regarded as late 
and will not be considered for funding. It is the responsibility of the applicant to ensure 
the proposal is received by the specified deadline. 


 
Additionally, GOCF will not consider funding any applicant that fails to comply with all 
application requirements.   Disqualification factors include any of the following: 


 


 Failure to include application narrative, application budget, and application 
attachments; 


 Failure to provide appropriate number of copies and format requested; 


 Applicant is not a public government entity; 


 Submission fails to include an original signature of the applicant’s executive 
officer on the application face sheet; or 


 Application lacks original signatures where appropriate. 







Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


  


 


11 


3d. Questions 
 


GOCF asks that applicants direct all questions to Joe Vignati, Administrator.  Applicants 
may reach Mr. Vignati by email Joe.Vignati@children.ga.gov or by phone at (404) 656-
5183.  Although questions will be permitted until the date of the RFP submission, they 
will be answered subject to staff availability.  As such, applicants are strongly 
encouraged to pose all questions as early as possible in the RFP process. 


4.  PROPOSAL NARRATIVE 


 
The following information provides a description of necessary components to be 
contained in the narrative portion of your proposal.  Limit the narrative to eleven (11) 
pages and use the outline format described in this section.  The narrative is a detailed 
statement of the work to be undertaken and answers who, what, when, where, why, and 
how statements about the grant proposal.  GOCF requires that applicants restate 
and number each Narrative Section followed by the response. 


 
4a. Statement of Need/Summary (½ page) 


 
Provide a clear and concise statement of need, including the following: 


1. Statement of the community problem 
 
For the purpose of this RFP applicants are instructed, at a minimum, to 
use each of the following metrics as justification of need for programming- 
 


 At-Risk Population  


 New Instances of Secure Detention (RYDC) 


 Cases Resulting in Commitment to DJJ 


 New Instances of Confinement in Secure Juvenile Correctional 
Facilities (YDC) 


 
This information for each county can be found at- 


 
http://juveniledata.georgia.gov/DataReports.aspx?report=RRIDataEntryReport 


 
2. A description of how the problem relates to the mission of the applying 


agency 
3. Overview of the Target Population to be served 
4. Description of the chosen priority area for proposal and why selected: 


Diversion or Aftercare/Re-entry 
5. Brief description of the activities requesting GOCF funds 
6. All applicants should indicate if they intend to apply for Juvenile 


Reinvestment Grant funds from CJCC in addition to this application. 
 
 
 



mailto:Joe.Vignati@children.ga.gov

http://juveniledata.georgia.gov/DataReports.aspx?report=RRIDataEntryReport





Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


  


 


12 


 


4b. Administration (½ page)  
 


1. Name the implementing agency. Provide a brief description of the implementing 
agency.  Name the applicant and fiscal agents, if these agencies are different 
from the implementing agency.  


2. List the agency’s qualifications and experience with managing grants. 
3. List the Community Partners and their description and contribution, if any, to 


the proposed program. 
4. Does the fiscal agent have the ability to maintain a quarterly cash flow? 


 
4c. Target Population (½ page) 


 
Provide a detailed description of the clearly defined target population to be served in the 
grant period, including the following: 
 
1. Target group/age range: a) middle school; b) high school; or c) both middle and 


high schools; 


2. How and Why Target Population was selected? 


3. Number of projected youth to be served; 
4. Gender: a) male only; b) female only; or c) male and female; 


5. County or counties to be served;  
6. Other demographics, including at-risk population(s); and 


7. List assessment instruments to be used for selected target population 


(More fully described in Section 4.d.4.-Intake). 
 


4d. Methods and Procedures (6 pages) 
 
Service Delivery 
 
1. Describe the overall format and design of the program, addressing the following: 


a. Program type (i.e., Youth Reporting Center, community-based, school-based, 
or other); 


b. Program time (i.e., during school hours, after school, weekends, summer, 
and/or year-round);  


c. Program frequency (i.e., the number of times the program is implemented or, 
in other words, the number of program cycles);  


d. Program duration (i.e., the length of the program in days, weeks, and/or 
months); 


e. Program hours (i.e., the minimum number of program hours per youth). 
 
2. Complete the Program Timeline (Attachment A-2).  Provide a detailed timeline 


from August 1, 2013 – June 30, 2014 of planned grant activities, including, but not 
limited to, program start and end dates for each site, special events, and planning, 
and planning period activities. 
 







Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


  


 


13 


3. List the specific site(s) where programming will occur (i.e., the site name and the 
street address).  Please describe how the proposed program site is a safe and 
convenient location for youth and parents to receive services. Attach any 
Memorandum(s) of Understanding for sites not under the jurisdiction of the 
applying or implementing agency (Attachment A-3).   


 
4. Fully describe the intake process.  List the criteria to determine which individuals 


will be offered program services. For Diversion programs, applicants must 
provide a detailed description of how the DJJ Detention Assessment Instrument 
(DAI) and the Pre-Disposition Risk Assessment will be utilized to ensure 
consistency and uniformity in decision-making.  


 


For Aftercare/Re-entry programs, applicants must provide a detailed 
description of how Community Risk and Needs Assessment (CRN) will be utilized 
to ensure consistency and uniformity in decision-making. 
 


 


Applicants must provide a detailed description of how the Pre-Disposition Risk 
Assessment will be utilized to ensure consistency and uniformity in decision-
making. 
 
More information can be found at the following- 


 


http://www.djj.state.ga.us/Policies/DJJPolicies/Chapter20/DJJ20.11DetentionDecisio
n.pdf 


 
http://www.djj.state.ga.us/Policies/DJJPolicies/Chapter20/DJJ20.30ComprehensiveR
iskandNeedsAssessment.pdf 
 
5. Describe how parental consent is obtained for youth to participate in the program.  


Explain if additional information (e.g., intake form, participant application, and/or 
needs assessment) is obtained for a youth to be enrolled in the program.  


 
6. Describe the services and supports provided to all individuals in the target 


population using GOCF grant funds and which agencies will provide these services.  
a. State the proposed primary curriculum or evidence-based interventions that 


will be that will be employed during this grant period.  Describe how this will 
be implemented. 
Examples include- Aggression Replacement Therapy (ART), Thinking for A 
Change (T4C), and Multi-Systemic Therapy (MST). 
Applicants should propose using juvenile interventions found to be Effective 
or Promising as described by CrimeSolutions.Gov 
http://www.crimesolutions.gov/TopicDetails.aspx?ID=62 
 


b. State and describe any other developmental activities program participants 
will receive in addition to the curriculum or intervention listed above.  Explain 
how each of these developmental activities will be implemented. 
 



http://www.djj.state.ga.us/Policies/DJJPolicies/Chapter20/DJJ20.11DetentionDecision.pdf

http://www.djj.state.ga.us/Policies/DJJPolicies/Chapter20/DJJ20.11DetentionDecision.pdf

http://www.djj.state.ga.us/Policies/DJJPolicies/Chapter20/DJJ20.30ComprehensiveRiskandNeedsAssessment.pdf

http://www.djj.state.ga.us/Policies/DJJPolicies/Chapter20/DJJ20.30ComprehensiveRiskandNeedsAssessment.pdf

http://www.crimesolutions.gov/TopicDetails.aspx?ID=62





Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


  


 


14 


c. Insert a chart that indicates the activity, the type of activity, and the number 
of hours per activity per youth.   
 An example chart is below: 


 
 


Activity Type 
Number of 
Hours per 


Youth* 
Primary Evidence-
Based Juvenile 
Justice Intervention 


Multi-Systemic 
Therapy 


6 


Developmental 
Community Service/  
BARJ model 


2 


Developmental Botvin Life Skills 3 


Developmental Counseling 2 


Developmental Tutoring 2 


Total Program Hours Per Youth 15 


     *approximate 
 


7. Describe the GOCF grant-funded services and supports provided to subsets of the 
target population and/or to youth in the target group who may or may not be 
receiving intensive services, if applicable.  
 


8. Describe the parent involvement and/or community awareness activities provided 
using GOCF grant funds, if applicable.   


 
Staffing 
 
9. Describe the primary roles and responsibilities for each grant-funded position.  


Attach a job description for each position discussed (Attachment A-4).   
 


10. Explain the plan for orientation and training of grant-funded staff. 
 


4e. Goals, Objectives, and Evaluation (2 pages) 
 
1. List the required program goals as outlined in the RFP.  List any additional 


program goals in a clearly defined and measurable manner.    
 
2. List the required program objectives as outlined in the RFP. List any additional 


program objectives in a clearly defined and measurable manner.  
 
3. Explain fully how all stated goals and objectives will be reached and evaluated.   


 
4.    Applicants will be required to explain how they currently collect data on youth    







Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


  


 


15 


         served and how they plan to expand this collection to include source of referral  
         information. 
 


4f.Sustainability (1 page) 
 
1. Describe the specific activities that will take place during this upcoming grant period 


to ensure sustainability. 
 
2. List the current funding sources and amount of funding for your organization.  
 
3. Identify potential state, federal, and or/private funding streams for program 


support. 
 
4. Identify any staff or volunteers that have assigned, dedicated efforts towards 


sustainability. 


 
4g.Previous Accomplishments (½ page) 


 
Programs applying for funding are required to provide a detailed description of any 
previous successful interventions or grant funding. Include a detailed summary of 
activities, number/percent of youth served to-date, and supporting data to demonstrate 
whether or not the project objectives and goals were met.  
 
If problems were encountered in previous grants or objectives were not fully achieved, 
please provide a full description detailing issues and corrective action(s) taken to 
address.  
 
This information is an essential component of all applications. 


5.  FISCAL RESPONSIBILITY & PROPOSAL BUDGE 
WORKBOOK  


All applicant agencies receiving GOCF funds should have an annual agency budget that 
derives at least 25% of its income from other federal, state, local or private funds, 
exclusive of GOCF awards.  The applicant agency must provide an adequate accounting 
system (see Accounting System/Internal Control Questionnaire) described in Forms, 
Assurances, and Certifications, and should meet the following criteria as outlined below:  


1.   Accounting records provide information needed to identify each grant awarded 
(State, Federal, Local Government, and Private) to applicant by identifying the 
receipt of funds for each grant and the expenditure of funds for each grant award;  


2.   Entries in accounting records refer to subsidiary records and/or documentation 
which support the entry and can be readily located;  


3.   The accounting system provides accurate and current financial reporting 
information; and  







Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


  


 


16 


4.   The accounting system integrates with an adequate system of internal controls to 
safeguard the funds and assets covered, check the accuracy and reliability of 
accounting data, promote operational efficiency, and encourage adherence to 
prescribed management policies. 


 
Proposal Budget Workbook:  Complete the Budget workbook (Attachment A-8).  
The Excel workbook contains a budget summary for the applicant.  The budget 
summary must provide computation of requested funds and justification of costs in 
relation to activities.  A detailed budget narrative should be submitted for clarity of 
expenses requested in the different budget categories.  Applicants must provide details 
on each cost item in the budget.  For example, applicants may not just include a cost 
item for “Speaker Contracts,” the applicant must describe what the purpose is, who the 
speaker is, what event is happening, and a justification of including this cost and value-
add to the grant.   
Grantees are responsible for obtaining and executing necessary agreements with 
partners or contractors providing services under this agreement.  Documentation and 
copies of agreements can be requested by GOCF at any time during the contract period.    
 
Budgets should be submitted within the grant proposal and electronically by CD.  A 
maximum limit of 10% on Indirect costs will be permitted.  The following is a brief list of 
common indirect costs and costs that will need to be justified as direct costs: 
 


Indirect Costs: 


 Grants Manager  


 Finance Director/Accountant/Bookkeeper 


 Trainer 


 Bookkeeping costs 


 Financial and/or programmatic audit costs 


 Rent and/or mortgage on administrative offices 


 Utilities on administrative offices 


 Office supplies for staff  
o Pens, paper, etc. 


 Insurance 


 Employee travel to grantee trainings 


 Printing 


 Meeting Expenses 


 Copier 


 Postage 


 Vehicle Maintenance 


 Background Investigations 
 


Costs that will need justification to be considered direct service: 


 Trainings 


 Conferences 


 Travel 
o Outside of direct service travel 







Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


  


 


17 


 Equipment 


 Administrative Staff and Supervisors 
o Who also provides direct service 
o Supervision of any staff is not direct service, only hands-on work with 


community 


 Volunteers 


 Copier 
o Use of the copier for direct service  


 Cell phones for direct service employees requiring travel 


 Meeting expenses for outreach and awareness activities  
 


 
Allowable and Unallowable Costs: A list of allowable and unallowable costs is 
provided at the back of the budget workbook. Examples of allowable expenses are 
defined under the budget categories.   


6.  APPLICATION ATTACHMENTS: APPLICATION FORMS, 
ASSURANCES, CERTIFICATIONS, AND FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS  


 
The applicant is required to comply with the following as described in the RFP 
attachments. The sub-grantee will be responsible for ensuring that any service delivery 
partners comply with the following forms applicable to the partner.  
 
A-1 Application Face Sheet: Signed by executive officer of the applying agency. 
 
A-2 Program Timeline: A detailed timeline of grant activities. 
 
A-3 Memorandum(s) of Agreement:  Signed agreement(s) between the applying 


agency and program site(s) not under the jurisdiction of the applying agency, if 
applicable.   


 
A-4 Job Descriptions: Job description for each grant-funded position. 
 
A-5 Forms, Assurances, and Certifications: To certify intent to comply with all 


of the following, the chief executive officer of the applying agency must review, 
complete, sign, and submit all of the following forms: 
1. Questionnaire Accounting and Financial Capability Information 
2. Non-Supplanting Certification 
3. Service Delivery Strategy Act Compliance Certification 
4. Immigration and Security Form 
5. Child Abuse Reporting, Background Investigation, Internet Security Policy Requirements 
6. Certifications Regarding Lobbying; Debarment Suspension and Other Responsibility Matters; 


and Drug-Free Workplace Requirements 
 


A-6 Applicant’s Financial Statements: The applicant must maintain compliance 
and eligibility to receive state funds by complying with audit of OMB Circular A-







Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


  


 


18 


133 “Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Institution” and 
requirements of O.C.G.A. 36-18-7.  Reference: 
https://www.audits.state.ga.us/nalgad/rlocgovt.html ; 
Reference:https://www.audits.state.ga.us/nalgad/Audit_law_OCGA_36-81-
7_effective_2004.pdf   Submit the following: 


 
Local Unit of Government Applicant  
Local Units of Government must attach to the application an audit from the most 
recently concluded fiscal year in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. 


 
 
A-7 NOT APPLICABLE for this offering 
 
A-8 Budget Workbook: Submit in working Excel format and copies with the 


proposal. 
 


7.  FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND 
TRANSPARENCY ACT 


 
The Transparency Act requires information disclosure concerning entities receiving federal 
financial assistance through federal awards such as federal contracts, sub-contracts, grants, 
and sub-grants (Reference 31 U.S.C. 6101). 
  
Successful applicants will be required to provide total compensation of the five highest 
compensated officers of the sub-grantee if the sub-grantee in the preceding fiscal year 
received 80 percent or more of its annual gross revenue in federal awards and $25,000,000 
or more in annual gross revenue from federal awards.  Successful applicants will also need 
to provide the following information in order to comply with the “Federal Funding 
Accountability and Transparency Act.” 
 


 Contractor’s DUNS number  


 Month of fiscal year end  ∙Congressional district #  


  


8.  SELECTION PROCESS 


 
GOCF will review all proposals received before the declared deadline to ensure all 
necessary worksheets and documentation are completed and included in submitted 
proposals.  The proposal review committee will not review incomplete applications and 
GOCF will not permit applicants to add information to their application after 
submission, unless a clarification or additional information is requested. 
 
GOCF will send award notices mid-July.  Communication via phone, e-mail, and/or fax 
regarding award notices is prohibited before official notification.   







Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


  


 


19 


9.  POST-AWARD REQUIRED ACTIVITIES 


Applicants are strongly encouraged to include costs that might be associated with the 
required and non-required activities (e.g., travel, lodging, food, etc.) within their 
proposed budgets. 
 


9a. GOCF Grant Management Workshop 
 


If an applicant is awarded a grant, grantee may be required to attend a GOCF grant 
management workshop. 


 
9b. Site Visits 


 
GOCF staff will conduct a site visit to each grantee during the grant period.  Additional 
visits may be conducted, but each grantee will have at least one visit from GOCF staff 
during the grant year.  Site visits will be scheduled with the grantee in advance.  Site 
visits will be conducted to monitor the program for progress, implementation, 
adherence to outcomes, and to view program and financial documents. 


 
9c. Additional Training, Technical Assistance, and Events 
 


1. GOCF will offer a number of non-mandatory post-award training and technical 
assistance opportunities and special events 


 
Grantees will be informed of events via e-mail, and the events will be posted on the 
GOCF website.  GOCF staff also will give ongoing, individual technical assistance and 
other support activities to sub-grantees as needed or requested throughout the year 


 
 


Application Submission Instructions 
 
Disqualification Factors: 


 Applicant is not a public government entity  


 Submission fails to be postmarked by the deadline date; 


 Submission fails to include the original signature of the executive officer of the applicant 
on the application face sheet; or 


 Application lacks original signatures where appropriate. 
 
Format: 


― Number of every page submitted as part of your application  


― Use type that is 12-point font size and one inch margins 


― The application narrative should be typed on white paper that is 8 ½ x 11 inches 


― Include a footer identifying the applying agency  


― Adhere to page limits 


― Applications should not be stapled or bound; use binder clips 


― Applicants must restate and number each proposal narrative question followed by the 
response  







Governor’s Office for Children and Families    
2013 Juvenile Reinvestment Grant Program RFP   


  


 


20 


 
 
Application Order: 
Use the table below to ensure that all requested information is included in your application in 
the correct order.  
 


Required Application Order 
Maximum 
Page Limit  


Applicant 
Checklist 


(Y/N) 


Application Face Sheet (Attachment A-1) NA  


Application Narrative:  11  


A. Statement of Need/Summary ½   


B. Administration ½  


C. Target Population ½  


D. Methods and Procedures 6  


E. Goals, Objectives, and Evaluation 2  


 
      F.     Sustainability 


 
1  


      G.     Previous Accomplishments 


½  


Application attachments in the order listed below: 
A-2  Program Timeline 
A-3  Memorandum(s) of Understanding  
A-4  Job Descriptions 
A-5  Forms, Assurances, and Certifications  
A-6  Applicant’s Financial Statements 
A-7  N/A 
A-8  Budget Workbook 


 


N/A  


 





		Juvenile Court- Grant Application Agenda Request File

		Juvenile Court- Grant Application Backup

		Juvenile Court-Grant Application summary-Back-up

		GOCF 2013 Juvenile Reinvest RFP-Back-up








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina or Dennis Dutton


Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance concerning building height in the General-Business (G-B) 


Zoning District.  


In conjunction with the rezoning for the Pinewood Studio, the Board of Commissioners instructed staff and the Planning Commission to 


review the building height limit in the General-Business zoning district to accommodate the studio. 


 


Staff has met three times with the Planning Commission and citizens from the SR 138 area, where another property is zoned G-B, to 


discuss the issue.   


 


The group came up with a progressive setback and minimum acreage requirements based on building height.  Two options were 


developed for the minimum acreage requirements and are presented for  Board input.


Direction from the BOC on whether the proposed amendments are satisfactory and which minimum acreage requirement option should 


be utilized.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, March 28, 2013


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessThursday, June 13, 2013







1 


 


ARTICLE III.   DEFINITIONS 


 


Building Height.  The vertical distance of a building measured from the median height of the 


basement level or crawl space to the midpoint of the highest roof. The midpoint shall be 


measured from the ceiling joist of the highest floor level or from where the truss rests on the 


highest wall for open roof structures. For structures constructed without a basement or crawl 


space, the measurement will be taken beginning at the ground floor level. Architectural features, 


which are not utilized for habitable/occupiable space, shall not be included in the calculation of 


building height (see Tower Height.) 


 


Soundstage. A room or building used for the shooting of film and video content. 


 


Occupiable Space. A room or enclosed space designed for human occupancy in which 


individuals congregate for amusement, educational or similar purposes or in which 


occupants are engaged at labor, and which is equipped with means of egress and light 


and ventilation facilities meeting the requirements of the International Code Council. 


 


 
ARTICLE VI. 


 


Sec. 6-26.  G-B General Business District. (Adopted 12/13/12) 


 


Sec. 6-26.  G-B General Business District. (Adopted 12/13/12) 


A. Purpose.  The purpose of the General Business District (G-B) is to provide for 


business development that contains uses which are free from such nuisances as 


noise, vibration, smoke, gas, fume, odor, dust, radiation or other injurious or 


noxious conditions related to those uses.  The G-B Zoning District limits the 


development of retail commercial uses and reduces the resulting traffic generation 


and noise associated with this type development.  The uses allowed in this zoning 


district could lend to a business park development pattern. 


  


B. Permitted Uses.  The following Permitted Uses shall be allowed in the GB Zoning 


District:   


 


1. Auction house (indoor only); 


2. Banquet hall and/or catering service ; 


3. Business, professional, and/or government offices; 


4. Business support centers and/or call centers; 


5. College and/or university, classrooms and/or administration only; 


6. Computer data services and/or information technology; 


7. Educational/instructional/tutoring facilities, including, but not limited to:  


art; computer; dance; driving and/or DUI; martial arts; music; 


professional/business/trade; and similar facilities; 


8. Financial, credit, real estate, and/or insurance establishments (excluding 


retail banking facilities or pawn establishments); 


9. Health club, fitness center, and/or indoor athletic facility (excluding 


bowling alleys, pool rooms and skating rinks); 


10. Medical supply and equipment sales 







2 


 


11. Printing, graphic, blue printing, photography lab, and/or reproduction 


service; 


12. Private school, including, classrooms and/or administration only; 


13. Publishing and distribution; 


14. Restaurant supply; 


15. Scientific, medical/dental, and/or research laboratories; 


16. Television/radio broadcasting studio, recording studio, 


telecommunication, and/or movie/media productions (including on-site 


with movie/media productions, ancillary businesses that supply support 


services, equipment and resources to the movie/media industry) ; and 


17. Training center, trade school, and/or vocational centers. 


C.    Conditional Uses.  The following Conditional Uses shall be allowed in the G-B 


Zoning District provided that all conditions specified in Article VII.  Conditional 


Uses, Nonconformances, Transportation Corridor Overlay Zone, and Commercial 


Development Standards are met: 


 


1. Single-Family Residence and accessory structures and uses (see Article 


V.);  


2. Home Occupation;  


3. College and/or University, including, but not limited to: classrooms, 


administration, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and stadium; and 


4. Private School, including, but not limited to: classrooms, administration, 


playground, housing, athletic fields, gymnasium, and/or stadium. 


D.    Dimensional Requirements.   The minimum dimensional requirements in the G-B 


shall be as follows: 


   


1. Lot Area:   


a. Where public water is available:  43,560 square feet (one [1] acre) 


b. Where public water is not available:  65,340 square feet 


(one and one-half [1.5] acres) 


2. Lot width: 125 feet 


  3. Front yard setback: 


a. Major thoroughfare: 


i.  Major Arterial: 100 feet 


ii. Arterial:  100 feet 


iii. Collector:  80 feet 


b. Minor thoroughfare:  65 feet 


4. Rear yard setback: 25 feet 


5. Side yard setback: 25 feet 


6.  Buffer:  If the rear or side yard abuts a residential or A-R Zoning District, 


a minimum buffer of 50 feet shall be provided adjacent to the lot line, in 


addition to the required setback.  The setback shall be measured from the 


buffer. 


7. Height limit:  


a. 40 feet 


b. Only soundstages associated with movie/media productions in 







3 


 


this zoning district may exceed 40 feet in height but shall have a 


maximum height of 65 feet. The area of the building above 40 


feet shall not be occupiable space.  The front setback shall be 


increased eight (8) feet for every one (1) foot of building height 


over 40 feet.  If the  side and/or rear yards abut a residential or 


A-R zoning district, the setbacks shall be increased five (5) feet 


for every one (1) foot of building height over 40 feet. 


c. The required minimum acreage shall be increased based on 


building height per the table below:   


 


Option 1 


Building Height Required Acreage 


45 feet 10 -25 


50 feet >25-50 


55 feet >50-75 


60 feet >75-100 


65 feet >100 


 


Option 2 


Building Height Required Acreage 


50 feet 20-50 


55 feet >50-75 


60 feet >75-100 


65 feet >100 


 


 


 


 


8. Lot coverage limit, including structures and parking area:  70 percent of 


total lot area. 


9. Outside Storage and Refuse Area Requirements.  The following 


requirements shall apply to outside storage and refuse areas.  Where this 


section contradicts any other requirement, the most restrictive shall apply. 


a. Outside storage of merchandise, equipment, parts, and business 


vehicles shall be allowed in side or rear yards only, subject to 


screening, setback and buffer requirements.  


b. All refuse areas shall be allowed in side or rear yards only, shall be 


screened, and comply with the required buffers and setbacks.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







4 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


April 18, 2013 


PC Meeting 


 


 Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, 


Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article VI, Sec. 6-26., G-B General Business District 


regarding:  building height.    
 


Pete Frisina stated this building height issue came up with the rezoning for the Pinewood movie 


studio and the Staff Report cited items that were in conflict with County regulations that would 


need to be discussed in terms of possible ordinance amendments.  He said the height of 65 feet is 


for the soundstage portion of the buildings and the soundstage is basically a shell where the sets 


are built and there is a catwalk where the riggings and lights will hang and the Board has asked 


the staff and Planning Commission to look at this issue.  He said he what he has prepared for 


discussion is a definition for a “soundstage” and a proposal in G-B that a soundstage only could 


be 65 feet high but for every foot the building is over 40 feet the setback will increase.  He said 


this ratio increase in a setback is standard for zoning and the County currently has similar 


regulations in A-R for agricultural structures such as silos.   


 


Jim Graw said the proposal states “for soundstages associated with movie/media productions.” 


 


Pete Frisina responded that that is the listed use within the G-B district. 


 


Doug Powell asked if these proposed amendments would allow the studio owner on SR 138 to 


go up to 45 feet as he originally wanted. 


 


Pete Frisina responded that it would give him the ability to go to 45 feet or higher as long as he 


could meet the increased setbacks. 


 


Al Gilbert said he thought we should look at all of the non-residential zoning districts in terms of 


building height as a Conditional Use with certain criteria that would need to be met such as a 


minimum lot size like 250 acres so you couldn’t have a small postage stamp size lot with a 65 


foot tower. 


 


Doug Powell said the increased setbacks may not allow a large structure on a small lot. 


 


Jim Graw said he was concerned about the property on SR 138 because there are homes around 


the property and a 65 foot building may not be appropriate in the area and he likes the 


Conditional Use aspect of setting criteria such as lot size.  He said he does not know what the 


purpose of increasing the setbacks achieves. 


 







5 


 


Al Gilbert said it pushes the buildings further from the road. 


 


Jim Graw said if you have 250 acres the buildings will be well off the road anyway. 


 


Pete Frisina said the standard setback in the G-B is 100 feet from the right-of-way and based on 


this proposal and increase from a building height of 40 feet to 65 feet would increase the front 


setback from 100 feet to 225 feet. 


 


Doug Powell said that he would want to make sure that the setback increase did not create a 


problem for the Pinewood studio. 


 


Pete Frisina stated that the Pinewood studio had the soundstages set back 300 feet from the road. 


 


Doug Powell asked if the property of SR 138 is large enough to allow a taller building. 


 


Pete Frisina said if the building was increased from 40 feet to 45 feet it would increase the 


setback to 125 feet but an increase to 65 feet would increase the setback to 225 feet. 


 


Doug Powell said that could push the building back to the back of the lot. 


 


Jim Graw suggested increasing the base building height in G-B to 45 feet and then anything 


higher than 45 feet would be a Conditional Use. 


 


Doug Powell said the only question is; are we comfortable with a base building height of 45 feet 


in G-B. 


 


Jim Graw said allowing a 65 foot building on SR 138 may not be a good idea as there are more 


homes in that area. 


 


Al Gilbert said is there a way to determine how much of the building will be visible from the 


road and make that part of the Conditional Use. 


 


Doug Powell asks what happens if the elevation of the road changes. 


 


Jim Graw said the property on SR 138 is flat and there is no change in elevation. 


 


Doug Powell said that if you move the structure back from the road as the height is increased 


then the perspective would remain the same. He said his concern is; are we setting precedence 


for 65 feet.    


 


Pete Frisina said we would set a regulation for 65 feet which is beyond precedence.   


 


Patrick Stough said but it is limited to soundstages only. 


 







6 


 


Al Gilbert said that in the past it was implied that the 35 foot height limit was based on fire 


protection and if you see the response from the Fire Chief they don’t have a concern as long as 


people are not occupying that area. 


 


Pete Frisina said in the past 35 feet was an issue with the Fire Department’s ladders but now they 


have ladder trucks that go up higher.  He added the fire marshal’s comment say that he is not 


concerned with these types of buildings with 65 feet as this is not occupied space. 


 


Doug Powell asked what would happen if someone in G-B wanted a 65 foot tall non-retail office 


structure, basically five stories tall. 


 


Pete Frisina said the proposal limits it to soundstages only. 


 


Doug Powell said but by approving the soundstages at 65 feet are we not opening up ourselves to 


be challenged for occupied buildings at 65 feet.    


 


Patrick Stough said the justification to limiting it to soundstages, is the area at 65 feet is an 


unoccupied space where an office building is occupied and has a different fire safety concern.   


 


Jim Graw asked if the studio proposed on SR 138 would have soundstages that fit into this 


definition. 


 


Pete Frisina said he thought the studio on SR 138 would have soundstages that meet this 


definition. 


 


Doug Powell he didn’t know if he would raise the building height to 45 feet and would leave it at 


40 with the increased setbacks for greater building height. 


 


Jim Graw asked; what is the reasoning of increasing the setback in relation to the building 


height. 


 


Pete Frisina said that it was a standard zoning practice and the County has something in A-R for 


agricultural structures such as silos and it keeps the visual perceptive from the road. 


 


Patrick Stough said the further from the road the less high the structure appears. 


 


Doug Powell asked if the height setback ratio should be made a Conditional Use. 


 


Jim Graw said we should make it a Conditional Use and add a lot size requirement. 


 


Doug Powell asked Patrick Stough for his opinion on the Conditional Use suggestion of 


requiring additional acreage for an increase in the building height. 


 


Patrick Stough said it is something we could add, but he questions how the increased setback 


would affect the property on SR 138. 


 







7 


 


Pete Frisina said he had not looked the property to determine how it would be affected. 


 


Jim Graw asked if the increased setback was a way to preclude small properties from getting 65 


feet. 


 


Pete Frisina said we only have two properties in the County zoned G-B and the property on SR 


138 may have enough room to allow a 65 foot building but it would be pushed back further from 


the road and surrounding properties. 


 


Jim Graw said this looks like a way to prevent somebody with a small lot from increasing their 


setbacks and you add a requirement for 250 acres. 


 


Pete Frisina said requiring 250 acres would really prevent a 65 foot building. 


 


Jim Graw said it would prevent the 65 foot building but you are limiting it based on acreage and 


not space on the lot. 


 


Pete Frisina said it would allow someone to increase building height on a small lot to the point 


where they can’t meet the setback and if we limit to 250 acres we have precluded any property 


under 250 acres. 


 


Jim Graw said that is right and you are not forcing someone into something like an increased 


setback and they know coming in they don’t have 250 acres and they can’t have 65 feet, or 200 


acres I don’t know what the exact number needs to be required. 


 


Patrick Stough said the issue is agreeing on the number of acres. 


 


Al Gilbert said if you set a number of acres, what happens when the next studio comes in and 


they don’t have the required acreage and we have to change it again. 


 


Pete Frisina said he recently has had two issues with building height with other buildings in other 


zoning districts such as churches that were allowed to be higher than 35 feet and rumor is it was 


based on unoccupied space but the ordinance should have been changed to address this when the 


church was built and another recent instance is an industrial facility that needs clearance for a 


crane mechanism to build electrical components that are 30 feet tall that need clearance for the 


build to prevent electrical arching, so we are dealing with some uses we have never seen before.  


 


Al Gilbert said again we may have to look at all the nonresidential zoning categories with the 


issue. 


 


Jim Graw asked if the property on SR 138 could meet the increase setbacks. 


 


Pete Frisina said he didn’t know. 


 







8 


 


David Brill suggested increasing the front setback ratio to 10 feet for every one foot of building 


height and the side and rear setback ratio to five feet for every one foot of building height and 


would it be guaranteed that the additional space would be greenspace. 


 


Pete Frisina said that only a soundstage and or portion of a soundstage that is greater than 35 feet 


would have to meet the increased setback and buildings of 40 feet or less would just meet the 


standard G-B setbacks. 


 


Patrick Stough suggested increasing the front setback ratio to 8 feet for every one foot of 


building height suggested that would make the setback 300 feet. 


 


Jim Graw asked what are the side and rear setbacks in G-B. 


 


Pete Frisina said both side and rear setbacks would be a 50 foot buffer and a 25 foot setback.  


 


Doug Powell asked what the timeline is for this amendment. 


 


Pete Frisina said it is on a fast turnaround. 


 


Doug Powell said we need to look at the two properties and determine the right distances to 


propose. 


 


Jim Graw said we need to know if we increase the front to eight feet and the side and rear to five 


feet how it affects the property on SR 138 and he does not want to see a 65 foot building on SR 


138. 


 


Doug Powel said he would like to know what this formula does to the property on SR 138. 


 


Pete Frisina said he wanted Mr. Brill and the Fayette Community Association to be aware of any 


changes so we could get their input. 


 


Al Gilbert asked Pete Frisina to look at the two properties and determine how the various 


formulas that were discussed tonight would affect them and present this at the next meeting and 


also asked if he could research if there are any acreage requirements for buildings in other zoning 


ordinances we could review. 


 


Doug Powell asked; what is the schedule for the annexation of the Pinewood studios because we 


are making changes to our ordinances that may not be even needed especially if the property is 


annexed into the city. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







9 


 


 


 


 


 


May 2, 2013 


PC Meeting 


 


Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, 


Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article VI, Sec. 6-26., G-B General Business District 


regarding:  building height.    
 


Pete Frisina stated this building height issue came up with the rezoning for the Pinewood movie 


studio and the Staff Report cited items that were in conflict with County regulations that would 


need to be discussed in terms of possible ordinance amendments.  He said the Board of 


Commissioners has given staff direction to review the building height to accommodate movie 


studios.  He added the proposal is to allow the height of 65 feet for a soundstage building and for 


every foot the building is over 40 feet the front setback will increase by eight (8) feet and the 


side and rear setbacks will increase by five (5) feet and this is a standard zoning practice and the 


county has something similar in A-R for agricultural building such as silos and windmills.  He 


said the question from the last meeting is if this is allowed in G-B how will it affect the property 


on SR 138 as it is the only other property zoned G-B and based on the plat submitted with the 


rezoning there is a portion of the property where the proposed setbacks for a 65 foot tall 


soundstage could be met and the area comprises approximately two (2) acres that is 300 feet 


from the front property line and 200 feet from the side property lines. 


 


Doug Powell asked if there has been any indication from Mr. Williams that he would want a 65 


foot soundstage. 


 


Pete Frisina replied that Mr. Williams indicated that he would like the same consideration as the 


Pinewood property to be competitive.  He added that he had invited Mr. Williams to the meeting 


and hoped he would be here tonight. 


 


Doug Powell stated that originally Mr. Williams wanted 45 feet of height and we limited G-B to 


40 feet and his concern is that went through the public process and the citizens in that area of the 


county were involved. 


 


Pete Frisina said we limited it to 40 feet because at the time that was the tallest build the county 


allows in any zoning district. 


 


Doug Powell said his concern is with the citizens that thought it was a done deal with 40 feet and 


now here we are considering 65 feet. 


 


Jim Graw said he has the same concerns as Doug Powell.  


 


Tim Thoms said it can’t be 65 feet until the ordinance is changed. 


 







10 


 


Pete Frisina passed a picture around of a crane mast that was 65 feet tall taken at approximately 


300 feet away to give some perspective to the presence of a 65 foot high structure. 


 


David Brill said he measured his house at 31 feet today to get an impression of how high a 65 


foot building would be and he said it would be a six (6) story building. 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said you can take a field trip to California and see what those big 


monolithic buildings look like and it is one thing to put them out on Sandy Creek Road on a big 


forested lot and another thing to put one right in the back of a residential neighborhood in the 


north end of this county and what Mr. Williams said he was going to do is produce TV shows 


and not major motion pictures like Pinewood and why he would need 65 feet to produce TV 


shows it makes her wonder what they were talking about in the first place. 


  


Bill Beckwith asked if Mr. Williams indicated that he was going to build a building that tall. 


 


Doug Powel replied that Mr. Williams indicated the he wanted 45 feet. 


 


Bill Beckwith asked if he indicated that he wanted 65 feet. 


 


Pete Frisina said he has now. 


 


Jim Graw said he has driven past this area on SR 138 and this property is an open field. 


 


Pete Frisina said the property is next to the back of the Catholic School and is pasture land. 


 


Jim Graw said he is very concerned about a 65 foot building on that property in that area because 


of the residents and we talked about a 40 foot building height and now we are talking about a 65 


foot building and he feels that 65 feet in that area is just too tall of a building even if it is 300 feet 


off of the road and 200 feet from the sides. 


 


Chairman Gilbert said 65 feet in the area where Pinewood is located seems fine he is not sure 


that it fits on SR 138 and he thinks we should limit it on the number of acres. 


 


Jim Graw said we should limit it to 100 acres and he got the 100 acres from the Planned 


Entertainment Farming PUD, so the county has used 100 acres for a minimum before. 


 


Bill Beckwith asked what we consider media, is TV production media.  


 


Pete Frisina said the term “media” is used in the G-B zoning district. 


 


Jim Graw said we have two situations with G-B and we need to find a way to separate them and 


acreage is a way to do that and he also likes the increased setbacks.  He added that there is not 


100 acres available on SR 138 based on the area designated for G-B. 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman asked instead of changing the entire ordinance why can’t the county just 


make an exception for Pinewood studios. 







11 


 


 


Doug Powel said that had we had time the county could have developed a Planned Unit 


Development type zoning to provide control and flexibility. 


 


Tim Thoms said at the last meeting conditional zoning was discussed. 


 


Patrick Stough said conditional zoning is used to restrict property. 


 


Tim Thoms said he meant Condition Use not conditional zoning and could we use Conditional 


Use restrictions for soundstages. 


 


Pete Frisina said that Conditional Use restrictions could be created and they would be in Article 


VII. 


 


Tim Thoms asked if someone makes application for G-B and they want to do something out of 


the scope of G-B would they ask for a conditional zoning or a variance.  


 


Jim Graw said a Condition Use would need to be established. 


 


Tim Thoms asked if we make a soundstage a Conditional Use would you take it out of the 


Permitted Use of the zoning.  


 


Pete Frisina replied that Tim was using the terms “Conditional Use” and “conditional zoning” 


synonymously and they are similar but different as conditional zoning is applied in a rezoning to 


restrict over and above the basic zoning requirements and Conditional Use are written into the 


zoning ordinance and also restrict over and above the basic zoning requirements. 


 


Chairman Gilbert said we need to think about this in other zoning districts because we have a 


situation in an industrial park that needs a taller building as well and churches that want taller 


buildings and in some cases it fine and it others it is not. 


 


Tim Thoms said for clarification once someone meets the Conditional Uses you can establish the 


use.  


 


Patrick Stough replied that was correct. 


 


Doug Powell said based on the proposed setbacks the property on SR 138 could meet the 


setbacks for a 65 foot building so in developing these standards we need to consider the size of 


the lot and this property would be limited to 40 feet even though it could meet the setbacks for 


65 feet. 


 


Tim Thoms said he didn’t understand how 100 acres relates to a movie studio as it seems meant 


to exclude the SR 138 area and he didn’t agree with the limitation.  


 


Jim Graw said in part it does exclude the SR 138 area. 


 







12 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said her question is still why the county can’t treat Pinewood as an 


exception. 


 


Pete Frisina said because the zoning ordinance does not have a mechanism to provide 


exceptions. 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman so there is no way to write something in the ordinance to allow an 


exception. 


 


Pete Frisina said currently there is a variance procedure but it is based on a hardship that relates 


to problems with the lot configuration. 


 


Bill Beckwith said variances are not for convenience. 


 


Pete Frisina said he had hoped that Mr. Williams would be at the meeting as he owns a G-B 


property and he feels we need his input as well.  He said Mr. Williams expressed to him that he 


didn’t want to be in a position where he couldn’t compete in the market place.  Pete Frisina 


suggested that we look at a range of acreages and additional landscaping to screen the buildings 


using berms and trees.  


 


Doug Powell said what you are suggesting is the structure height be related to acreage and also 


require increased setbacks. 


 


Pete Frisina stated that was correct.  


 


Chairman Gilbert stated a range of acreage thresholds is a good idea. 


 


David Brill said that seemed like a fair approach. 


 


Pete Frisina said the other issues that have come up lately is an industrial building that needs to 


exceed the height limits and a church that wants to do the same. He said the industrial building 


has a 10 foot clearance requirement for the manufacturing of high voltage testing equipment due 


to potential arching and a crane mechanism that will be installed in the top of the building, 


however, if the setback ratio we are discussing is applied there will be no room to build the 


structure.  He said there is also an issue with churches as well and added he has reviewed 


Peachtree City’s ordinance and they do not limit the height of churches and industrial buildings 


but the buildings must meet structural and fire codes and could have additional conditions placed 


on industrial development through the site plan process.  He said Fayetteville limits commercial 


and industrial buildings to 60 feet.  He added that there are some churches in the county that are 


higher than 35 feet and he isn’t totally clear on how these were approved. 


 


Patrick Stough said his understanding was the height limit did not apply because it was not 


occupiable space. 


 


Pete Frisina said to his knowledge the ordinance was not amended to address this situation.  


 







13 


 


Chairman Gilbert said if someone is building a church they will question how those other 


churches got approved. 


 


Pete Frisina said he didn’t know exactly how it was handled at that time and he would continue 


to research the records but he would like to correct the ordinance.  He added that if the setback 


ratio we are discussing is applied there will be no room to build the church.  


 


Jim Graw said he is familiar with this industrial park. 


 


Tim Thoms said the park backs up to a residential area. 


 


Jim Graw said that are a lot of trees behind this property. 


 


Doug Powell pointed out that the top of this building will not be occupied space and if we make 


changes to G-B then someone will want the same height in another zoning district. 


 


Pete Frisina said we should address this in each zoning district. 


 


Chairman Gilbert recommended that staff prepare proposed building height requirements 


amendments for industrial and churches.  


 


Doug Powell asked what we are going to do with G-B. 


 


Pete Frisina said he really wanted Mr. Williams’ input as well.  He added that the suggestion 


tonight was to add an acreage requirement and to look at a range of required acreages.  


 


Chairman Gilbert said he liked the range of acreage approach adding so much height per 25 or so 


acres up to 100 acres. 


 


Jim Graw said another option is to increase the standard height requirement in G-B to 45 feet. 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said the county set a standard of 40 feet and now we are considering 


changing it 45 feet and she asks what people in the area can rely on if the requirements can be 


constantly changed and would an increased setback and acreage still be part of raising the 


standard height to 45 feet. 


 


Pete Frisina said the setback could still be increased. 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said in her opinion, the ordinance should be amended to address Pinewood 


because it is a much larger operation on a much bigger property and 65 feet would be appropriate 


there and treat them as an exception and not rewrite an ordinance that was put in place just three 


months ago.  She said she is not in favor of amending the ordinance in a way that affects the 


property on SR 138 by allowing a taller building. 


 







14 


 


Doug Powell said the BOC has asked us to look at this building height issue with the new studio 


as these studios are looked upon as economic development they have been approved to build 


their facility in a G-B zoning. 


 


Tim Thoms said the zoning has been approved but the building height has not been increased 


yet. 


 


Doug Powell said that Tim was correct. 


 


Tim Thoms asked if the increased setback would apply to the rear yard as well. 


 


Pete Frisina said the increase would include the rear yard as well. 


 


Tim Thoms said he is not in favor of increasing the building height in G-B and he is not in favor 


of a 65 foot building on Sandy Creek Road or SR 138.  He knows that Pinewood needs to be 


accommodated as they are a larger company and he doesn’t fault Mr. Williams for wanting the 


same thing Pinewood wants to be competitive. 


 


Bill Beckwith asks why Tim doesn’t think that a 65 foot building is appropriate on Sandy Creek 


Road.  


 


Tim Thoms said it is an agricultural area or it was an agricultural area until the county rezoned 


the Pinewood property, but it makes a huge impact and the applicant never shared the balloon 


test pictures they mentioned at the rezoning but a 65 foot building will stick out like a sore 


thumb. 


 


Bill Beckwith said if the people that are in this business are rezoned and they know what they 


need, why would  you say it is not right.  


 


Tim Thoms said I can’t say they don’t need 65 feet, he said it shouldn’t be in that area and they 


were approved G-B with a 40 foot height limitation. 


 


Bill Beckwith said but they need 65 feet and we have been asked to look at the ordinance. 


 


Tim Thoms said he thinks a 65 foot building is out of character in the agricultural-residential 


area. 


 


Bill Beckwith said the area is agricultural-residential now but it is changing and it is close to the 


hospital. 


 


Tim Thoms said in his opinion a 65 foot building is out of character for the county but he thinks 


the increased setbacks is a way to mitigate the height. 


 


Doug Powell said when this property is annexed it will be under the city building height 


requirements. 


 







15 


 


Jim Graw said we don’t know when the annexation will take place and they will start building 


these studios in the county and they need to know if they can build at 65 feet. 


 


Doug Powell said the problem is we are changing our ordinance knowing that the property is 


going into Fayetteville and we are changing the entire G-B zoning district. 


 


Pete Frisina said the movie business is one of the major growth industries in the state of Georgia 


and if this is the industry standard we may have to deal with this again in the future if another 


studio wants to locate in the County and we need to find a balance where we can between the 


neighborhoods and Mr. Williams and we already have Pinewood’s input.  He said he would take 


the suggestions from tonight and hopefully Mr. Williams can make the next meeting and we can 


continue the discussion. 


 


Chairman Gilbert said that we should raise the standard building height to 45 feet as the property 


on SR 138 will find it hard to compete. 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said the county should start with 40 feet not 45 feet. 


 


Doug Powell said we also have to understand the argument from the neighborhood’s perspective. 


 


Chairman Gilbert said he understood their opinion as well.   


 


Jim Graw asked where would we start, does 25 acres allow 45 feet and then we go up 


incrementally from there. 


 


Chairman Gilbert said let staff work on it and bring something back for discussion. 


 


Jim Graw said Mr. Williams said he could work with 40 feet. 


 


Chairman Gilbert said we capped the zoning district at 40 feet, what choice did he have.  He said 


that we need look at Mr. Williams’ property to be fair. 


 


David Brill asked Tim Thoms what building height he would be comfortable with in the county. 


 


Tim Thoms said he didn’t know exactly right now and he wonders if there are other uses in G-B 


that may not be able to meet a 40 foot building height such as a recreational facility or gym. 


 


Pete Frisina said Tim Thoms makes a good point and Fayette County could be at a turning point 


and we need to determine if we can still afford to be a bedroom community as the residential 


property has lost a great deal of value during the recession and may never regain their initial 


mortgage value and remain underwater and the new homes being built in the county now are not 


as big as were being built in the past and therefore have less value which affects tax revenue so 


we have to look at diversifying the tax base and movie studios and the like may be the way to go.  


 


Tim Thoms said with that in mind if the county needs to intersperse 65 foot tall buildings 


amongst residential zoning and the only reason we controlled height in the past was for fire 







16 


 


control and now we have ladder trucks and it not an issue then we need to find a defining point 


for height limitations, such as aesthetics or do we need any limit at all. 


 


Pete Frisina said it was based on fire prevention and it was also based on the character of 


development.  He said Peachtree City and Fayetteville have a limit of 35 feet in residential 


zonings like the county.  He said these other jurisdictions have taller building in their non-


residential zoning districts but the county generally limits building height to 35 feet in both 


residential and non-residential and Tim Thoms’ points are good because what happens when a 


non-residential use needs more than 35 feet in building height and there are uses allowed in the 


zoning ordinance that have yet to develop in the county and we could be faced with the problem 


in the future because we can’t anticipate all of these situations.  He added as example we tried to 


come up with standards for a movie studio and we never had a movie studio before so we do the 


best we can and the county is moving in new directions that we have never experienced before.  


Pete Frisina said he would get information back to the Planning Commission and the citizens. 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







17 


 


 


 


 


May 16, 2013 


PC Meeting 


 


Discussion of proposed amendments to the Fayette County Code of Ordinances, 


Chapter 20. Zoning Ordinance, Article VI, Sec. 6-26., G-B General Business District 


regarding:  building height.    
 


Tim Thoms entered the meeting. 


 


Pete Frisina stated this building height issue came up with the rezoning for the Pinewood movie 


studio and the Board of Commissioners has given staff direction to review the building height to 


accommodate movie studios.  He said to review from the last meeting, the proposal is to allow 


the height of 65 feet for a soundstage building and for every foot the building is over 40 feet the 


front setback will increase by eight (8) feet and the side and rear setbacks will increase by five 


(5) feet and the Planning Commission had recommended that an acreage range be added to the 


requirements where for every five (5) foot increment of building height over 40 feet to 65 feet an 


additional 25 acres would be required.  He said staff developed two options for the acre range 


and the only difference is Option 1 starts at 45 feet of build height with 10 to 25 acres and Option 


2 starts at 50 feet of building height with 10 to 50 acres. 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said this ordinance as it is currently written with 40 feet of building height 


only applies to lots of 10 acres or more. 


 


Pete Frisina said the proposed increase in building height would only apply to soundstages. 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said that she never thought we were anticipating a soundstage on a lot as 


small as 10 acres.  


 


Pete Frisina said since G-B allows a one (1) acre lot he wanted to start with something bigger 


and a ten acre lot is a pretty good sized lot for starting purposes. 


 


Doug Powell said right now with one (1) acre you could have a 40 foot building so what these 


amendments suggest is to have more building height you have to have more acreage and greater 


setbacks the higher you go. 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said, why permit the height increase with ten acres, why not start the 


acreage ranges at 25 acres? 


 


Pete Frisina said even at 10 acres you would still need to meet the same setback as 25 acres. 


 


Bill Beckwith said 10 acres is a pretty sizable lot. 


 


Pete Frisina agreed. 







18 


 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said she objects to allowing a building height increase with only 10 acres. 


 


Pete Frisina said the Planning Commission had asked staff to research approaches to mitigating 


building height and found recommended measures including: broken wall planes, façade 


modulation, pitched roof elements, varied wall finishes and building mass that conforms to site 


contours.  He said the architectural requirements in the SR 138 and SR 314 overlay zone cover 


the broken wall planes, façade modulation, pitched roof elements and varied wall finishes and 


the proposed increased for setbacks based on building height address conforms the building mass 


to the site contours. 


 


Alvin Williams said he was in favor of Option 2 based on his property which is close to 25 acres 


and Option 2 would allow him to build a 50 foot tall building.  He added a 50 foot building 


would allow him to build a two story set within the building and a 45 foot building would not 


give him the room to build a two story set. 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said this zoning district was passed less than six (6) months ago and we 


went to the citizens and you said you can live with 40 feet and now you want 50 feet so what is 


the intent here and are the citizens going to feel like they were bamboozled.  


 


Doug Powell said he agrees with Aisha Abdur-Rahman and the citizens in the area went through 


the process to create this zoning.  He added that originally Alvin Williams had asked for 45 feet 


but the zoning was capped at 40 feet and he didn’t know that everybody was happy with that 


height but that is what was approved.  Doug Powell said he was in favor of Option 1 and he 


thinks the citizens in this area would be in favor of Option1 as well. 


 


Alvin Williams said he respects Doug Powell’s position but he respectively disagrees because at 


that time he was the only individual proposing to build a film and television studio and now 


Pinewood is coming into the marketplace which changes things as they are an international 


movie studio that will be much larger than his facility.   He added his rezoning opened the door 


for movie studios in Fayette County and if you want to hold him to 40 or 45 feet, hold Pinewood 


to 40 or 45 feet.  He said as a resident of Fayette County he would not want Pinewood held to 


less than 65 feet and he would not want to be held to less than 65 feet because both facilities will 


have a positive economic impact on the county but to be fair to him and his business peers if you 


keep him at less than 65 feet you need to keep Pinewood at less than 65 feet. 


 


Bill Beckwith said if you have more than 100 acres as this proposal recommends you could have 


65 feet. 


 


Alvin Williams said his intent was to rezone only 25 acres on SR 138 of the 85 acre tract to 


protect the surrounding residential areas as he plans to live on the remainder of the property.  He 


said that he is willing to compromise at 50 feet because it will allow him to stay competitive, 


however if he is held to 40 of 45 feet he cannot be competitive. 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said to Alvin Williams that he was not supposed to be competing with 


Pinewood’s movie studio because that is not what you said you were going to do. 







19 


 


 


Alvin Williams said at the time he was the only studio being proposed for Fayette County and to 


be competitive he needs to have similar rules as Pinewood will have. 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said to Alvin Williams not what he said he was going to do. 


 


Alvin Williams said at the time Pinewood had not been proposed. 


 


 Aisha Abdur-Rahman said to Alvin Williams that Pinewood should not have an effect on what 


Mr. Williams told the community he was going to build on SR 138 as he said he was going to 


film television shows and you could work in a 40 foot building. 


 


Alvin Williams said you are giving pinewood a 65 foot building and if he could get 65 feet it 


would allow him the do the same type of production Pinewood is able to accomplish.  Alvin 


Williams said Pinewood has changed the situation and all he wants is for the County to be fair to 


him. 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said to Alvin Williams that he needs to be fair to the residents of the area. 


  


Chairman Gilbert asked everyone to address their comments to the Planning Commission. 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said the residents understood 40 feet would meet the intent so now don’t 


change because another company has come into the county.    


 


Alvin Williams said the intent changed because Pinewood came into the picture and when the 


county was working with him to create the zoning and rezone his property he was told that 40 


feet was going to be the maximum height so he didn’t have a choice.  He added that he 


understood that the County needs to be careful when they create new regulations but he doesn’t 


want to be treated unfairly when Pinewood will get the ability to build up to 65 feet and he will 


be held to 40 or 45 feet and he is in favor of Option 2 which gives him, the ability to build at 50 


feet.   


 


David Brill suggested in Option 2 that the starting acreage be 25 acres for a 50 foot building. 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said that still allows someone to build up to 50 feet with 25 acres. 


 


David Brill said it does not allow 50 feet on a lot of less than 25 acres. 


 


Pete Frisina said that Alvin Williams is just less than 25 acres so that is why he started the 


acreage at 10 acres. 


 


David Brill suggested starting the acreage at 20 acres to allow some increase in building height 


but insist on a minimum amount of acreage. 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said that the bottom line is aesthetics and she doesn’t even think a 40 foot 


building belongs in a residential neighborhood.  







20 


 


 


Alice Jones said we need to consider fairness as an equitable situation and consider all sides of 


this issue given the present ordinance and the business concerns. 


Tim Thoms said that initially he didn’t think a 65 foot building belonged anywhere in 


unincorporated Fayette County but he drove by the Pinewood site and they have started a berm 


along the road and the site slopes down where the buildings will be located so those building will 


be less visible.  He added that he is not as familiar with the site on SR 138 because there is a row 


of pine trees along the road. 


 


Alvin Williams said the pine trees will help block the view on his property.  


 


Tim Thoms said wasn’t as familiar with the area on SR 138 but there are some neighborhoods 


close by. 


 


Pete Frisina said the site on SR 138 backs up to a portion of Dix-Lee-On subdivision. 


Tim Thoms said we have to look at the future as well as the existing properties and try to be 


equitable.  He added that the increased setbacks combined with minimum acreage are a good 


approach and he is leaning toward Option 1. 


 


Alvin Williams said he would like to restate his earlier comment and he doesn’t think it is a good 


idea to hold Pinewood to less than 65 feet because they need that for the product they produce 


because the economic impact they will have on the County will be great.  He added that what he 


likes about these meetings is the people involved here are great stewards of the County and have 


the best interests of the County in mind.  He said any consideration for a building of greater than 


40 feet that can be given to his site would help him remain competitive and that is all he can ask. 


 


Doug Powell said when Alvin Williams first came in he asked for 45 feet and the County gave 


him 40 feet and he asked Alvin Williams how he came up with 45 feet. 


 


Alvin Williams said he needs a five (5) foot clear area between the set and the roof for riggings, 


lights, and fire safety as the lights get very hot and that is why he initially requested 45 feet.  He 


added that if he could get a 50 foot building he could build a two story set which would be more 


economical. 


 


Doug Powell said Option 1 gives you 45 feet. 


 


Alvin Williams said the higher the building the more he can do in terms of sets. 


 


Doug Powel said we are giving you what you originally wanted in the first place with Option 1 


and we don’t want everyone on every G-B lot to have the ability to build up to 65 feet unless 


they have a lot of property.  Doug Powell asked what other zonings are in the County that allows 


the property owner to do more based on the amount of property. 


 


Chairman Gilbert said that the more acreage you have in residential zoning the more horses you 


could have. 


 







21 


 


Doug Powel said the point is the County has in practice allowed greater usage of property based 


on the amount of acreage and that is the principal we are applying with building height in G-B. 


 


Alvin Williams said his request started the process of creating the G-B zoning district and 


acreage was not tied to building height initially.  He added that he understands what the County 


is trying to do now because of Pinewood studios and acreage is another method to control the 


development but because of Pinewood other studios will be interested in coming into Fayette 


County. 


 


Tim Thoms asked Alvin Williams if he had looked at sinking the building to reduce the height. 


 


Alvin Williams said he had not hired an engineer yet but he thinks the water table on his property 


is high which would make it hard to sink the building. 


 


Bill Beckwith said the acreage range we have come up with is a good approach as it is 


reasonable to allow greater usage, or in this case a higher building, as the acreage is increased.  


 


Pete Frisina said that he developed both options based on the discussions at previous meetings 


and he took into consideration the situation with pinewood studios, the property on SR 138, input 


from the neighborhood when the zoning district was developed and the issue of competitiveness 


and he recommends Option 2 as a good compromise because strikes a balance between the 


various interests. 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said if we were starting from scratch and this had been what you were 


going to do six (6) moths ago instead of going back on what you said you were going to do six 


(6) months ago that would make a lot more sense than doing it now. 


 


Bill Beckwith said you are right but things have changed and if we would have known then what 


we know now, we would have probably come up with something similar to what we are doing 


now with acreage and building height. 


 


Doug Powell said if we had time we would have developed a PUD zoning for a movie studio and 


dealt with building height but we only had 27 days to look at Pinewood. 


 


Tim Thoms agreed that we would have probably looked at increased acreage for greater building 


height. 


 


Alvin Williams said the movie industry will have a positive impact on the economy of Fayette 


County. 


 


Tim Thoms said we have to be careful what we do because we need to protect the County. 


 


Alvin Williams said as a resident of the county he understand the concern. 


 


Pete Frisina said he will take these two options back to the BOC for their input. 


 







22 


 


Tim Thoms asked Pete Frisina why he recommends Option 2. 


 


Pete Frisina said he feels it is a good compromise and a 65 foot building on SR 138 may not be 


appropriate but we need to be cognizant of the competitive nature of the business and that is why 


we needed the input from Alvin Williams and he thinks it is a fair balance between all of the 


concerns. 


 


David Brill asked if it would be advisable to move the acreage in option 2 from 10 to 20 acres. 


 


Pete Frisina said that would be alright. 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said what difference it would make to her neighborhood. 


 


Pete Frisina said we had to start at some acreage. 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said these amendments are being done specifically for individuals and that 


is not the way zoning should work and it should be done for what’s best for the community not 


individuals and this is not going to keep this building from being 50 feet tall as opposed to the 40 


feet that was initially approved in her neighborhood.  


 


Doug Powell said when you develop a new zoning district and you put it into practice you 


sometimes have to go back and amend the regulations based practical experience.  


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said you don’t even have anything built under this zoning and in less than 


six (6) months you are already changing the ordinance. 


 


Alice Jones asked if the County had communicated directly with the people in Dix-Le-On. 


 


Pete Frisina said he had contacted David Brill as President of the North Fayette Community 


Association and asked him to get the word out. 


 


Alice Jones said the North Fayette Community Association has a meeting this Saturday and 


could Alvin Williams attend the meeting. 


 


Alvin Williams said he could attend the meeting on Saturday. 


 


David Brill said he could come to the meeting and speak. 


 


Aisha Abdur-Rahman said there are more neighborhoods than just Dix-Le-On that will be 


affected by this development. 


 


Pete Frisina said that he will take these recommended amendments to the BOC for their input. 


 


 





		Planning and Zoning- General-...eight Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- General-Business Building Height Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Planning and Zoning Pete Frisina


Approval of Resolution 2013-13 adopting the"Fayette County 2012 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees (FY2012), including 


Comprehensive Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program (FY2013-FY2017.)"


As required by the Georgia Development Impact Fee Act and the Minimum Planning Standards, Fayette County,  in collaboration with 


Tyrone, Brooks, and Woolsey, has prepared the "Fayette County 2012 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees (FY2012), including 


Comprehensive Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program (FY2013-FY2017.)" 


 


Public hearings were held by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners on March 28, 2013, and by the three (3) towns in the following 


weeks.  Each entity approved the report for transmittal to the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) for coordination of state and regional 


review. 


 


Fayette County has received notifications of compliance from the Georgia Department of Community Affairs and the Atlanta Regional 


Commission for the 2012 Fire Services Impact Fee Report including amendment to the Capital Improvements Element and Short Term 


Work Program of the Comprehensive Plan.  The next step is for each local government to adopt this report and for the adopting 


Resolutions to be transmitted to ARC.  The deadline for this adoption and transmittal of the adopting Resolutions to ARC is June 30, 


2013.  These actions are required for each government to re retain its Qualified Local Government status.


Approval of Resolution 2013-13 adopting the"Fayette County 2012 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees (FY2012), including 


Comprehensive Plan amendments for updates to the Capital Improvements Element and Short-Term Work Program (FY2013-FY2017.)"


Not Applicable.


Yes March 28, 2013


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, June 13, 2013







COUNTY OF FAYETTE  
STATE OF GEORGIA 
 


RESOLUTION NO. 
 


A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE FAYETTE COUNTY 2012 ANNUAL 
REPORT ON FIRE SERVICES IMPACT FEES (FY 2012), INCLUDING 
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENTS FOR UPDATES TO THE 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT AND SHORT-TERM WORK 
PROGRAM (FY2013- FY2017)  


 
WHEREAS, Fayette County has in collaboration with the towns of Tyrone, Brooks, and 


Woolsey prepared the “Fayette County 2012 Annual Report on Fire Services Impact Fees 
(FY2012), Including, Comprehensive Plan Amendments for Updates to the Capital 
Improvements Element and the Short-Term Work Program (FY2013-FY2017),” and 
 


WHEREAS, the annual update was prepared in accordance with requirements of the 
Georgia Development Impact Fee Act and the Minimum Planning Standards and Procedures for 
Local Comprehensive Planning established by the Georgia Planning Act of 1989; and 
 


WHEREAS, on the 28th day of March 2013, the Fayette County Board of 
Commissioners conducted a public hearing on the 2012 Fire Services Impact Fee Report and 
proposed Comprehensive Plan amendments; approved that report and authorized transmittal to 
the Atlanta Regional Commission for coordination of regional and state review; and  
 


WHEREAS, the Regional and State reviews have been completed and a notification of 
compliance has been received from ARC. 
 


BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED THAT the Fayette County Board of 
Commissioners, does hereby adopt the “Fayette County 2012 Annual Report on Fire Services 
Impact Fees (FY2012) Including Comprehensive Plan Amendments for Updates to the Capital 
Improvements Element and the Short-Term Work Program (FY2013-FY2017).” 
 


ADOPTED by the Fayette County Board of Commissioners this 13th day of June, 2013.                          
       
 


FAYETTE COUNTY 
      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
      ________________________ 
      Steve Brown, Chairman 
      Board of Commissioners 
 
ATTEST: 
  
____________________________ 
Clerk/Deputy Clerk 
 















- 1 - 


 


  PPuubblliicc  HHeeaarriinngg  DDrraafftt  
 


FAYETTE COUNTY 


2012 ANNUAL REPORT: 


FIRE SERVICES IMPACT FEES (FY2012) 
 


Including 


Comprehensive Plan Amendments for 


Updates to the 


CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT  


and the  


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM (FY2013 – FY 2017) 
 


 


Fayette County 


Town of Brooks 


Town of Tyrone 


Town of Woolsey 


FAYETTE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND ZONING                                    







- 2 - 


 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


FAYETTE COUNTY







- 3 - 


 


 


 


Fayette County and Towns of Brooks, Tyrone and Woolsey Summary Impact Fee Financial Report  


 FY 2012 


 Fire Services 


Total Impact Fee Balance From Previous Fiscal Year $0.00 


Impact Fees Collected in FY 2012 By Jurisdiction  


   Fayette County $28,827.36 


   Brooks $0.00 


   Tyrone  $4,081.56 


   Woolsey $0.00 


Total $32,908.92 


Accrued Interest  $37.03 


(Administrative/Other Costs) ($839.52) 


(Impact Fee Refunds) $0.00 


(Impact Fee Expenditures) ($32,106.43) 


Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2012 $0.00 


   


Impact Fees Encumbered $0.00 


 







- 4 - 


 


Fayette County Impact Fee Financial Report - FY 2012 


Public Facility Fire Services 


Impact Fee Balance From Previous Fiscal Year  $0.00 


Impact Fees Collected in FY 2012 $28,827.36 


       Accrued Interest  $32.32 


     (Administrative/Other Costs) ($839.52) 


      (Impact Fee Refunds) 0.00 


     ( Impact Fee Expenditures) ($28,020.16) 


I Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2012 $0.00 


  


I Impact Fees Encumbered $0.00 


  


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


. 


 


 







- 5 - 


 


 


Fayette County Comprehensive Plan Amendment - Capital Improvement Element - Project Update FY 2012 


Public Facility: Fire Services 


Project Description 


Project 


Start 


Date 


Project 


End 


Date 


Estimated or 


Actual Cost 


of Project 


Funding 


From Impact 


Fees 


Percent 


by 


Impact 


Fees 


Other 


Funding 


Sources 


FY2012 


Impact 


Fees 


Applied 


Impact 


Fees 


Applied in 


Prior Years 


Remaining 


Amount to be 


Paid from  


Impact Fees   


Status/ 


Remarks 


Construct FS1, SR279 


FY02 FY02 $872,836  $471,331 54% 


Fire Tax 


 „n.a. $471,331 $0.00 Comp, FY02 


Construct FS10: Seay Rd FY 02 FY02 $838,295 $687,402 82% Fire Tax „n.a. $687,402 $0.00 Comp, FY02 


Construct FS5: S.R. 85 S. 


FY02 FY03 $1,191,565  $369,385 31% 


 


Fire Tax „n.a. $369,385 $0.00 Comp, FY03  


Construct FS7: Hampton Road 
FY03 FY03 $1,066,472  $586,559 55% Fire Tax „n.a. $586,559    $0.00 Comp, FY03 


Purchase Acreage for Future Fire 


Station: McElroy Road FY04 FY04 $25,000 $25,000 100% None „n.a. $25,000 $0.00 Comp, FY04  


Purchase Two (2) Quints FY06 FY07 $675,000  $675,000  100% None $32,106 $9,459 $633,435 Purchased FY07 


Emergency Operations Center . 


FY13 FY17 $3,000,000 


: 


$1,869,000 62.3% Fire Tax „n.a. $0.00 $1,869,000 In Process 


Construct  Fire Training Center 


(Burn Building) Future Future $350,000 $80,500 23% Fire Tax „n.a. $0.00 $80,500 


Not approved at 


this time. 


Totals   $8,019,168 $4,764,178 59%  $32,106 $2,149,136 $2,582,935  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







- 6 - 


FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2013- FY2017 
 


 


This section presents an updated five-year work program for FY 2013 through FY 2017 to implement the vision and goals of the Fayette County 


Comprehensive Plan.  In addition to the scheduling of projects for the county, the Short Term Work Program indicates potential sources of funding.  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







- 7 - 


 
 


FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2013-FY2017 - PUBLIC SAFETY 
 
Goal: Maintain and Improve the Level of Service for Public Safety                                                            Plan Element: Community Facilities 


 
 


Project Description 


 
Initiation Year 


 
Completion 


Year 


 
Total 


Estimated Costs 


 
 


Funding Sources 


 
 


Responsibility 


Fire and Emergency Services      
 
Severe Weather Warning System 


 
FY 2013 


 
FY 2016 


 
$180,000 


 
General Fund & 


Grants 


 
Fayette County 


Emergency 


Services 


Replace Fire Station 2 FUTURE FUTURE $1,300,000 Fire Fund Fayette County 


Emergency 


Services 


Addition/Renovation of  Fire Station 8 FUTURE FUTURE $300,000 Fire Fund; Impact 


Fees 


Fayette County 


Emergency 


Services 
 
Sheriff’s Office 


 
 


    


 
Consolidated Public Safety Training Facility 


FUTURE FUTURE 
 


$460,000 
 
TBD 


 
Fayette County 


Emergency 


Services & Sheriff 







8 


 
FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2013-FY2017 – GOVERNMENTAL SERVICES 
 
Goal: Provide Support for Effective and Efficient Delivery of Governmental Services                                                            Plan Element: Community Facilities 


 
 


Project Description 


 
Initiation Year 


 
Completion 


Year 


 
Total 


Estimated Costs 


 
 


Funding Sources 


 
 


Responsibility 


Information Systems      


Aerial Photography FY2014 FY2014 $220,000 General Fund Information 


Systems 


 
 


FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2013-FY2017  RECREATION 


 
Goal: Upgrade Recreation Services                                                                                                               Plan Element: Community Facilities 


 
 


Project Description 


 
Initiation 


Year 


 
Completion 


Year 


 
Total 


Estimated Costs 


 
 


Funding Sources 


 
 


Responsibility 


 
Kenwood Park Enhancements 


 
FY 2012 


 
FY 2017 


$500,000 
 


General Fund 
 


Fayette County 


Recreation Dept. 
 
Kiwanis Park Enhancements 


 
FY 2012 


 
FY 2016 


 
$300,000 


 
General Fund 


 
Fayette County 


Recreation Dept. 
 
McCurry Park Enhancements 


 
FY 2012 


 
FY 2016 


 
$915,800   


 


 
General Fund 


 
Fayette County 


Recreation Dept. 


 


Security  Systems 


 


FY2013 


 


FY2013 


 


$50,000 


 


General Fund 


 


Fayette County  


Recreation Dept 


 


 


 







9 


 
 


FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2013-FY2017 -  WATER SYSTEM 
 
Goal: Upgrade County Water System                                                                                                     Plan Element: Community Facilities 
 


 


Project Description 


 
Initiation 


Year 


 
Completion 


Year 


 
Total 


Estimated Costs 


 
 


Funding Sources 


 
 


Responsibility 
 
Water Tank Construction at  


Horseman=s Run Site 


 
FY 2015 


 
FY 2016 


 
$2,000,000 


 
G.E.F.A. Loan 


 
Fayette County 


Water System 
 
Water Tank Construction at Porter Road Site  


 
FUTURE 


 
FUTURE 


 
$2,000,000 


 
G.E.F.A. Loan 


 
Fayette County 


Water System 
 
South Fayette Treatment Plant Expansion 


 
FUTURE 


 
FUTURE 


 
$6,000,000 


 
Revenue Bonds 


 
Fayette County 


Water System 


 


   Porter Rd. Line Extension 


 


 


 


 


    FY2016 


 


    FY2016 


 


$2,000,000 


 


G.E.F.A. Loan 


 


  Fayette County  


 Water System 


 


Hwy 74 Pressure Improvements 


 


 


    FY2015 


 


    FY2015 


 


$1,250,000 


 


G.E.F.A. Loan 


 


  Fayette County  


 


  Water System 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







10 


 
 


FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY 2013 to FY 2017 - PUBLIC WORKS 
 
Goal: Maintain and Improve County Road System                                                                                 Plan Element: Community Facilities 
 


 


Project Description 


 
Initiation Year 


 
Completion 


Year 


 
Total 


Estimated 


Costs 


 
 


Funding 


Sources 


 
 


Responsibility 


Swanson Rd - Grade, Base & Pave FY2015 FY2016 $391,900 General Fund Fayette County Public 


Works 


Trickum Creek Rd. - Grade, Base & Pave FY2013 FY2013 $130,00 General Fund Fayette County Public 


Works 


Kelly Rd. – Grade, Base and Pave FY2013 FY2015 $804,200 General Fund Fayette County Public 


Works 
 
Kenwood Road Bridge Replacement 


 
FY 2013 


 
FY 2015 


 
$1,124,000 


 
SPLOST  


Fayette County Public 


Works 
 
Intersection Improvement @ Sandy Creek 


Road, Sams Drive & Eastin Road 


 
FUTURE 


 
FUTURE 


 
$365,000 


 
SPLOST  


Fayette County Public 


Works 


 
Intersection Improvement @ SR 92, Harp 


Road & Seay Road  


 
FUTURE 


 
FUTURE 


 
$285,000 


 
SPLOST  


Fayette County Public 


Works 


 
Intersection Improvement @ South Jeff 


Davis Road, County Line Road  


 
FY2013 


 
FY2015 


 
$304,000 


SPLOST Fayette County Public 


Works 


 
West Fayetteville Bypass (SR 92 to Sandy 


Creek Road Portion) Phase II 


 
FY 2008 


 
FY 2014 


 
$8,042,000 


 
SPLOST  


Fayette County Public 


Works 


 


 East Fayetteville Bypass (Phases I&II) 


 
FY 2007 


 
FY 2016 


 
$67,457,000 


 
SPLOST & 


Fed/State 


Fayette County Public 


Works 


 
Coastline Road Bridge Improvement 


 
FUTURE 


 
FUTURE 


 
$608,000 


 
SPLOST  


Fayette County Public 


Works 


      


 







11 


 
 


FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2013-FY2017 - PUBLIC WORKS 
 
Goal: Maintain and Improve County Road System                                                                                 Plan Element: Community Facilities 
 


 


Project Description 


 
Initiation 


Year 


 
Completion 


Year 


 
Total 


Estimated 


Costs 


 
 


Funding 


Sources 


 
 


Responsibility 


 
McIntosh Road Bridge Improvement 


 
FY 2010 


 
FY 2015 


 
$3,042,000 


 
SPLOST & 


Fed/State  


 
Fayette County Public 


Works 


 







12 


 
 


FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2013 - FY2017 – PLANNING AND ZONING  
 
Goal: Growth and development should be consistent with the county comprehensive plan.                  Plan Element: Land Use Plan 
 


 


Project Description 


 
Initiation 


Year 


 
Completion 


Year 


 
Total 


Estimated 


Costs 


 
 


Funding 


Sources 


 
 


Responsibility 


This is a specific activity addressing an Area Requiring 


Special Attention - SR 54 Nonresidential Corridor and 


an Assessment of Consistency with Quality Community 


Objectives- Regional Identity, Appropriate Businesses, 


Employment Options, and Educational Opportunities: 


Continue the joint study of the SR 54 Nonresidential 


Corridor with the City of Fayetteville. Issue will be 


addressed in the major update of the Comprehensive 


Plan. 


 
FY 2013 


 
FY 2017 


 
Staff Time 


 
General 


Fund 


 
Fayette County 


Planning and 


Zoning 


Department 


and Fayetteville 


Planning and 


Zoning 


 
This is a specific activity addressing an Area Requiring 


Special Attention - SR 85 Nonresidential Corridor and 


an Assessment of Consistency with Quality Community 


Objectives- Regional Identity: Conduct study of the SR 


85 North Nonresidential Corridor.  Issue will be 


addressed in the major update of the Comprehensive 


Plan. 


 
FY 2013 


 
FY 2017 


 


 
Staff Time 


 
General 


Fund 


 
Fayette County 


Planning and 


Zoning 


Department 







13 


 
 


FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2013 - FY2017 – PLANNING AND ZONING  
 
Goal: Growth and development should be consistent with the county comprehensive plan.               Plan Element: Land Use Plan 


 
 


Project Description 


 
Initiation 


Year 


 
Completion 


Year 


 
Total 


Estimated 


Costs 


 
 


Funding 


Sources 


 
 


Responsibility 


 
This is a specific activity addressing an Area 


Requiring Special Attention - State Route (SR) 


Corridors and an Assessment of Consistency with 


Quality Community Objectives- Regional Identity: 


Conduct study of all State Route (SR) Corridors and 


institute changes to the Comp. Plan and Zoning 


Ordinance as necessary. Issue will be addressed in the 


major update of the Comprehensive Plan. 


 
FY 2013 


 
FY 2017 


 
Staff 


Time 


 
General 


Fund 


 
Fayette County 


Planning and Zoning 


Department 


 
This is a long-range objective to measure progress of 


an Area Requiring Special Attention - Conservation 


Areas and an Assessment of Consistency with 


Quality Community Objectives- Environmental 


Protection: Monitor the impact of development on 


Conservation Areas and institute changes to the 


Comp. Plan, Zoning Ordinance, and Development 


Regulations as necessary. Issue will be addressed in 


the major update of the Comprehensive Plan. 


 
FY 2013 


 
FY 2017 


 
Staff 


Time 


 
General 


Fund 


 
Fayette County 


Planning and Zoning 


Department and 


Fayette County 


Engineering 


Major Update of Fayette County Comprehensive  


Plan 


 
FY 2013 


 
FY 2017 


Staff  


Time 


General  


Fund 


Fayette County  


Planning and Zoning  


Department 







14 


 
 


FAYETTE COUNTY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY2013-FY2017 PLANNING AND ZONING 
 


 
Goal: Growth and development should be consistent with the county comprehensive plan.                  Plan Element: Land Use Plan 


 
 


Project Description 


 
Initiation 


Year 


 
Completion 


Year 


 
Total 


Estimated 


Costs 


 
 


Funding 


Sources 


 
 


Responsibility 


 
This is a specific activity addressing an 


Assessment of Consistency with Quality 


Community Objectives- Alternative 


Transportation: Conduct multi-use path study 


for Redwine Road. Issue will be addressed in 


the major update of the Comprehensive Plan. 


 
FY 2013 


 
FY 2017 


 
Staff 


Time 


 
General 


Fund 


 
Fayette County Planning 


and Zoning Department, 


Fayette County Public 


Works, Fayette County 


Department of Recreation, 


and Sheriff‟s Office 
 
This is a specific activity addressing an 


Assessment of Consistency with Quality 


Community Objectives- Alternative 


Transportation: Conduct multi-use path study 


for SR 54 to connect Fayetteville and Peachtree 


City to Hospital Area. Issue will be addressed in 


the major update of the Comprehensive Plan. 


 
FY 2013 


 
FY 2017 


 
Staff 


Time 


 
General 


Fund 


 
Fayette County Planning 


and Zoning Department, 


Fayette County Public 


Works, Fayette County 


Department of Recreation, 


and Sheriff‟s Office 


 
This is a specific activity addressing an 


Assessment of Consistency with Quality 


Community Objectives- Alternative 


Transportation: Conduct multi-use path study 


for SR 92 South and Antioch Road to Lake 


Horton Park, Issue will be addressed in the 


major update of the Comprehensive Plan. 


 
FY 2013 


 
FY 2017 


 
Staff 


Time 


 
General 


Fund 


 
Fayette County Planning 


and Zoning Department, 


Fayette County Public 


Works, Fayette County 


Department of Recreation, 


and Sheriff‟s Office 


 







15 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


BROOKS 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







16 


  


 


 


Fayette County and Towns of Brooks, Tyrone and Woolsey Summary Impact Fee Financial Report  


 FY 2012 


 Fire Services 


Total Impact Fee Balance From Previous Fiscal Year $0.00 


Impact Fees Collected in FY 2012 By Jurisdiction  


   Fayette County $28,827.36 


   Brooks $0.00 


   Tyrone  $4,081.56 


   Woolsey $0.00 


Total $32,908.92 


Accrued Interest  $37.03 


(Administrative/Other Costs) ($839.52) 


(Impact Fee Refunds) $0.00 


(Impact Fee Expenditures) ($32,106.43) 


Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2012 $0.00 


   


Impact Fees Encumbered $0.00 


 


 


 







17 


  


Brooks Impact Fee Financial Report - FY 2012 


Public Facility Fire Services 


Impact Fee Balance From Previous Fiscal Year $0.00 


Impact Fees Collected in FY 2012 $0.00 


       Accrued Interest  $0.00 


     (Administrative/Other Costs) $0.00 


      (Impact Fee Refunds) $0.00 


     ( Impact Fee Expenditures) $0.00 


I Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2012 $0.00 


  


I Impact Fees Encumbered $0.00 


  


 







18 


 


Fayette County Comprehensive Plan Amendment - Capital Improvement Element - Project Update FY 2012  


Public Facility: Fire Services 


Project Description 


Project 


Start 


Date 


Project 


End 


Date 


Estimated 


or Actual 


Cost of 


Project 


Funding 


From 


Impact 


Fees 


Percent 


by 


Impact 


Fees 


Other 


Funding 


Sources 


FY2012 


Impact 


Fees 


Applied 


Impact Fees 


Applied in 


Prior Years 


Remaining 


Amount to 


be Paid from  


Impact Fees   


Status/ 


Remarks 


Construct FS1, SR279 


FY02 FY02 $872,836  $471,331 54% 


Fire Tax 


 „n.a. $471,331 $0.00 Comp, FY02 


Construct FS10: Seay Rd FY 02 FY02 $838,295 $687,402 82% Fire Tax „n.a. $687,402 $0.00 Comp, FY02 


Construct FS5: S.R. 85 S. 


FY02 FY03 $1,191,565  $369,385 31% 


 


Fire Tax „n.a. $369,385 $0.00 Comp, FY03  


Construct FS7: Hampton Road 
FY03 FY03 $1,066,472  $586,559 55% Fire Tax „n.a. $586,559    $0.00 Comp, FY03 


Purchase Acreage for Future 


Fire Station: McElroy Road FY04 FY04 $25,000 $25,000 100% None „n.a. $25,000 $0.00 Comp, FY04  


Purchase Two (2) Quints 


FY06 FY07 $675,000  $675,000  100% None $32,106 $9,459 $633,435 


Purchased 


FY07 


Emergency Operations Center . 


FY13 FY17 $3,000,000 


: 


$1,869,000 62.3% Fire Tax „n.a. $0.00 $1,890,000 In Process 


Construct  Fire Training Center 


(Burn Building) 


Future Future $350,000 $80,500 23% Fire Tax „n.a. $0.00 $80,500 


Not 


approved at 


this time. 


Totals   $8,019,168 $4,764,178 59%  $32,106 $2,149,136 $2,582,935  


 


 







19 


 


BROOKS COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY 2013 to FY 2017 


Goal: Improve Public Infrastructure                                                                                    Plan Element: Community Facilities  


 


Project Description Initiation Year 


Completion 


Year Estimated Costs 


 


Funding Sources 


 


Responsibility 


 


Renovate Town Hall (Old Church Building) FY 2010 FY 2013 $50,000 


Town of Brooks 


and Donations Town of Brooks 


Expand Library  


FY 2013 FY 2015 $150,000 


Town of Brooks, 


State Grants, Loans 


and Donations Town of Brooks 


Church Alley Roadwork 


FY 2013 FY 2016 $10,000 


Town of Brooks, 


DOT Grant Town of Brooks 


Goal: Improve and Provide Recreational Facilities                                                                        Plan Element: Community Facilities  


Develop walking, biking and horse trail along 


Norfolk Southern Railway 


 


 


 FY 2009 FY 2016 Unknown 


Town of Brooks,   


State Grants, and 


Federal 


Transportation 


Funds 


Town of Brooks 


 


Develop lacrosse fields. 


FY2011 FY2016 $20,000 


Town of Brooks, 


BAR, Inc., and 


State Grants 


Town of Brooks 


and BAR, Inc. 


 


 


 







20 


 


 


 


 


 


 


TYRONE 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







21 


  


Fayette County and Towns of Brooks, Tyrone and Woolsey Summary Impact Fee Financial Report  


 FY 2012 


 Fire Services 


Total Impact Fee Balance From Previous Fiscal Year $0.00 


Impact Fees Collected in FY 2012 By Jurisdiction  


   Fayette County $28,827.36 


   Brooks $0.00 


   Tyrone  $4,081.56 


   Woolsey $0.00 


Total $32,908.92 


Accrued Interest  $37.03 


(Administrative/Other Costs) ($839.52) 


(Impact Fee Refunds) 0.00 


(Impact Fee Expenditures) ($32,106.43) 


Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2011 $0.00 


   


Impact Fees Encumbered $0.00 


 


 


 


 


 







22 


Tyrone Impact Fee Financial Report - FY 2012 


Public Facility Fire Services 


Impact Fee Balance From Previous Fiscal Year $0.00 


Impact Fees Collected in FY 2012 $4,081.56 


      Accrued Interest  $4.71 


(     (Administrative/Other Costs) $0.00 


(     (Impact Fee Refunds) $0.00 


(     (Impact Fee Expenditures) ($4,086.27) 


I  Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2012 $0.00 


  


I  Impact Fees Encumbered $0.00 


I  Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2012 $0.00 


  


I  Impact Fees Encumbered $0.00 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







23 


 


Fayette County Comprehensive Plan Amendment - Capital Improvement Element - Project Update FY 2012 


Public Facility: Fire Services 


Project Description 


Project 


Start 


Date 


Project 


End 


Date 


Estimated 


or Actual 


Cost of 


Project 


Funding 


From 


Impact 


Fees 


Percent 


by 


Impact 


Fees 


Other 


Funding 


Sources 


FY2012 


Impact 


Fees 


Applied 


Impact Fees 


Applied in 


Prior Years 


Remaining 


Amount to 


be Paid 


from  


Impact 


Fees   


Status/ 


Remarks 


Construct FS1, SR279 


FY02 FY02 $872,836 


 


$471,331 54% 


Fire 


Tax 


 „n.a. $471,331 $0.00 
Comp, 


FY02 


Construct FS10: Seay Rd 


FY 02 FY02 $838,295 $687,402 82% 


Fire 


Tax „n.a. $687,402 $0.00 


Comp, 


FY02 


Construct FS5: S.R. 85 S. 


FY02 FY03 


$1,191,56


5 


 


$369,385 31% 


 


Fire 


Tax „n.a. $369,385 $0.00 


Comp, 


FY03  


Construct FS7: Hampton Road 


FY03 FY03 


$1,066,47


2 


 


$586,559 55% 


Fire 


Tax „n.a. $586,559    $0.00 


Comp, 


FY03 


Purchase Acreage for Future 


Fire Station: McElroy Road FY04 FY04 $25,000 $25,000 100% None „n.a. $25,000 $0.00 


Comp, 


FY04  


Purchase Two (2) Quints 


FY06 FY07 $675,000 


 


$675,000  100% None $32,106 $9,459 $633,435 


Purchased 


FY07 


Emergency Operations Center . 


FY13 FY17 


$3,000,00


0 


: 


$1,869,0


00 62.3% 


Fire 


Tax „n.a. $0.00 $1,890,000 In Process 


Construct  Fire Training Center 


(Burn Building) 


Future Future $350,000 $80,500 23% 


Fire 


Tax „n.a. $0.00 $80,500 


Not 


approved at 


this time. 


Totals 


  


$8,019,16


8 


$4,764,1


78 59%  $32,106 $2,149,136 $2,582,935  







24 


 
 







25 


 


TOWN OF TYRONE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY 2013 TO FY 2017 


 


Project Description Initiation 


Year 


Completion 


Year 


Total Estimated 


Cost 


Funding 


Sources 


Responsibility 


Economic Development      


Appoint Member to Fayette County 


Development Authority 


FY2014 FY2017 Staff Time GF Town of Tyrone 


Community Facilities and Services      


Participate in Fayette County Governmental 


Association 


FY2013 FY2017 Staff Time GF Town of Tyrone 


Appoint Member to Flint River Regional 


Library System 


FY2013 FY2016 Staff Time GF Town of Tyrone 


Develop/Fund Capital Improvement 


Program. 


FY2013 FY2017 $1,050,000 GF Town of Tyrone 


Work with GDOT to Improve Existing 


Unpaved Roads 


FY2013 FY2017 Staff Time GF Town of Tyrone 


Land Use      


Update Zoning Ordinance FY2013 FY2016 Staff Time GF Town of Tyrone 


Update Land Development Ordinance FY2013 FY2016 Staff Time GF Town of Tyrone 


 







26 


 


TOWN OF TYRONE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


CAPITAL LMPROVEMENTS ELEMENT  FY 2013 – FY 2017 


        


Priority  Project Name Est. Cost FY2013 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017 


1 Valleywood Rd/Drainage & 


Paving 


$175,000 $175,000     


2 Valleywood Rd. Paving at RR 


Crossing 


$650,00 $650,00     


3 Intersection of Strandhill Rd. & 


Drumcliff Ct. Repairs to ditch 


and Culverts   


$7,000 $7,000     


4 Handley Park Soil Stabilization  $50,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 


5 Palmetto Rd Resurfacing 1.4 


miles 


$200,000 $20,000 $20,000 $160,000   


6 Tramore Trace Headwall Repair $3,500 $3,500     


7 Farr Road Sidewalk Repair  $20,000  $20,000    


8 Senoia Rd Sidewalk Repair $10,000  $10,000    


9 Autumn  Trace Resurfacing $35,000  $35,000    


10 Right turn Lane Tyrone Road @ 


SR74 


$60,000 $30,000 $30,000    


11 LMIG: Resurfacing $250,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 $50,000 


12 Third Soccer Field at Handley 


Park 


$200,000  $50,000 $50,000 $100,000  


 TOTALS $1,660,500 $945,500 $225,000 270,000 $160,000 $60,000 


 


 







27 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


WOOLSEY 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 







28 


 


 


Fayette County and Towns of Brooks, Tyrone and Woolsey Summary Impact Fee Financial Report  


 FY 2012 


 Fire Services 


Total Impact Fee Balance From Previous Fiscal Year $0.00 


Impact Fees Collected in FY 2012 By Jurisdiction  


   Fayette County $28,827.36 


   Brooks $0.00 


   Tyrone  $4,081.56 


   Woolsey $0.00 


Total $32,908.92 


Accrued Interest  $37.03 


(Administrative/Other Costs) ($839.52) 


(Impact Fee Refunds) $0.00 


(Impact Fee Expenditures) ($32,106.43) 


Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2012 $0.00 


   


Impact Fees Encumbered $0.00 


 


 


 







29 


Woolsey Impact Fee Financial Report - FY 2012 


  Public Facility Fire Services 


Impact Fee Balance From Previous Fiscal Year $0.00 


Impact Fees Collected in FY 2012 $0.00 


Accrued Interest   $0.00 


(Administrative/Other Costs) $0.00 


(Impact Fee Refunds) $0.00 


(Impact Fee Expenditures) $0.00 


Impact Fee Fund Balance Ending FY 2012 $0.00 


  


Impact Fees Encumbered $0.00 


 







30 


 


Fayette County Comprehensive Plan Amendment - Capital Improvement Element - Project Update FY 2012 


Public Facility: Fire Services 


Project Description 


Project 


Start 


Date 


Project 


End 


Date 


Estimated 


or Actual 


Cost of 


Project 


Funding 


From 


Impact 


Fees 


Percent 


by 


Impact 


Fees 


Other 


Funding 


Sources 


FY2012 


Impact 


Fees 


Applied 


Impact Fees 


Applied in 


Prior Years 


Remaining 


Amount to be 


Paid from  


Impact Fees   


Status/ 


Remarks 


Construct FS1, SR279 


FY02 FY02 $872,836  $471,331 54% 


Fire Tax 


 „n.a. $471,331 $0.00 
Comp, 


FY02 


Construct FS10: Seay Rd 
FY 02 FY02 $838,295 $687,402 82% Fire Tax „n.a. $687,402 $0.00 


Comp, 


FY02 


Construct FS5: S.R. 85 S. 


FY02 FY03 $1,191,565  $369,385 31% 


 


Fire Tax „n.a. $369,385 $0.00 


Comp, 


FY03  


Construct FS7: Hampton Road 


FY03 FY03 $1,066,472  $586,559 55% Fire Tax „n.a $586,559    $0.00 


Comp, 


FY03 


Purchase Acreage for Future 


Fire Station: McElroy Road FY04 FY04 $25,000 $25,000 100% None „n.a. $25,000 $0.00 


Comp, 


FY04  


Purchase Two (2) Quints 


FY06 FY07 $675,000  $675,000  100% None $32,106 $9,459 $633,435 


Purchased 


FY07 


Emergency Operations Center . 


FY13 FY17 $3,000,000 


: 


$1,869,000 62.3% Fire Tax „n.a. $0.00 $1,890,000 In Process 


Construct  Fire Training Center 


(Burn Building) 


Future Future $350,000 $80,500 23% Fire Tax „n.a. $0.00 $80,500 


Not 


approved 


at this 


time. 


Totals   $8,019,168 $4,764,178 59%  $32,106 $2,149,136 $2,582,935  


 


 


 


 


 







31 


 


TOWN OF WOOLSEY COMPREHENSIVE PLAN AMENDMENT 


SHORT TERM WORK PROGRAM UPDATE FY 2013 to FY 2017  
 
 


 
 


Project Description 


 
Initiation 


Year 


 
Completion 


Year 


 
Total 


Estimated 


Costs 


 
 


Funding 


Sources 


 
 


Responsibility 


Natural & Cultural Resources      


Adopt a tree preservation ordinance. FY2008 FY2015 $1,000 GF Town of Woolsey 


Community Facilities and Services      


Accept dedication and plan for renovation of the 


“Old General Store” for re-use as the Town Hall. 


FY2009 FY2015 $350,000 Grants/GF                   Town of Woolsey 


Land Use      


Investigate a rural use or conservation overlay. FY2009 FY2014 $1,500 GF Town of Woolsey 


of Woolsey. 


Transportation 


     


Apply for TE funding for the purpose of enhancing 


the pedestrian character of Town Center. 


FY2010 FY2014 $10,000 TE/GF Town of Woolsey 


\\ 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 





		Planning and Zoning- Impact Fees Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Impact Fees Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Purchasing Ted Burgess


Approval of staff's recommendation purchase a policy for property and casualty insurance with One Beacon Insurance for Fiscal Year 


2014 through Public Risk Underwriters, at the price of $599,568, and for the Chairman to sign the policy and related documents.


Each year, the county procures a policy for property and casualty insurance for the year beginning July 1 and ending June 30.  The policy 


includes the following broad categories of coverage: general liability, employee benefits liability, automobile liability and physical damage, 


crime, property, inland marine, equipment breakdown, law enforcement liability, public entity management liability, employment practices 


liability, and an umbrella liability policy for leased communications towers. 


 


There is upward pressure on prices in the insurance industry.  To obtain the best possible value for the county, it was decided to allow 


three brokers to obtain offers from insurance carriers.  Two of the three submitted a total of 16 completed offers by the due date, with the 


third broker submitting an incomplete offer, which was disqualified. 


 


Staff recommends the option which is the fifth-lowest priced out of the 16 options.  However, the deductible amounts for this option, as 


compared to the others, make it the one that offers the most value.


Approval of staff's recommendation to enter into a policy for property and casualty insurance with One Beacon Insurance for Fiscal Year 


2014 through Public Risk Underwriters, at the price of $599,568, and for the Chairman to sign the policy and related documents.


Funds are included in the annual budget to purchase insurance.


No


No Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


ConsentThursday, June 13, 2013







 
 
 
To:    Steve Rapson 
 
From:    Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:    May 15, 2013 
 
Subject:  FY 2014 Property & Casualty Insurance 
 
The county enters into agreements for property and casualty insurance each fiscal year.  The nature of 
the insurance industry means it operates differently than many other industries, so the procurement 
process is also different.  Insurance brokers or agents provide a significant amount of service in the 
acquisition of annual insurance policies. 
 
Three brokers expressed an interest in providing insurance proposals.  One broker submitted 14 
options from four private insurance carriers.  In addition, the Association County Commissioners of 
Georgia’s Interlocal Risk Management Agency (ACCG‐IRMA) submitted two options for their self‐
insurance pool (please see the attached spread sheet).  The third broker provided an incomplete 
proposal on the due date, and was therefore disqualified from this competition. 
 
Early indications had been that premiums would increase significantly for the upcoming fiscal year.  
Offered prices are indeed higher, as had been predicted.  The Fiscal Year 2013 initial premium was 
$482,800.  The offered Fiscal year 2014 options range from $559,345 (a 16% increase) to $759,523.44 
(a 57% increase). 
 
In determining which option would be the best value for the county, staff compared similarities, 
differences, and prices.  Generally speaking, the offered limits of liability were the same as, or 
comparable to, the current year’s policy.  Aside from price, the greatest number of differences was in 
the deductibles. 
 
A first glance at the side‐by‐side comparison shows that the lowest‐price offer was from ACCG.  
However, deductibles in 10 of the 12 broad insurance categories would be increased by 100% or 
more.  The second ACCG option would increase only two deductibles (and decrease one), but increase 
the premium cost by 33%. 
 
Comparing the remaining options – the 14 offered by Public Risk Underwriters – one sees that seven 
involve OneBeacon, and the other seven involve Travelers.  While Travelers is the county’s current 
carrier, and has been for a number of years, their prices in all cases are higher than OneBeacon’s 
prices.  In addition, Travelers’ deductible amounts did not reflect an offset to higher prices. 
 







Options III and XIV offer basically identical terms.  Both would actually decrease current deductibles in 
four of the twelve broad categories of coverage.  These two options have more of the lowest 
deductibles than any of the other offers, including those that are higher priced.  With no material 
differences between Option III and Option XIV, one would conclude based on price that Option III is 
the best choice of the two. 
 
In comparing Option III with the four options that would cost less, the variance in deductible amounts 
would more than offset the price difference. 
 
After considering the relevant factors – limits of coverage, deductibles, and cost – I recommend Public 
Risk Underwriters’ Option III, which would be carried by OneBeacon at a cost of $599,568. 
 
Attachment 







COVERAGE Current ACCG Option II PRU Option XI PRU Option XII PRU Option IV PRU Option III  PRU Option XIV
Travelers ACCG ‐ IRMA OneBeacon/I.H. OneBeacon/I.H. OneBeacon OneBeacon OneBeacon/C.N.A


General Liabilities
     Limit(s) $2,000,000 / $2,000,000 2,000,000 / No Agg Limit $2,000,000 / $2,000,000 $2,000,000 / $2,000,000 $2,000,000 / $2,000,000 $2,000,000 / $2,000,000 $2,000,000 / $2,000,000
    Deductible $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000


Employee Benefit Liability
     Limit(s) $1,000,000 /$3,000,000 Incl in Public Entity Mgt $1,000,000 /$3,000,000 $1,000,000 /$3,000,000 $1,000,000 /$3,000,000 $1,000,000 /$3,000,000 $1,000,000 /$3,000,000
     Deductible $1,000 $25,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000


Automobile
Liability:


     Limit(s) $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000


     Deductible $25,000 $50,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000


Physical Damage:


     Limit(s) Specified Autos (E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E)


     Deductible $25,000 $50,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000


Crime
     Limit(s) $100,000 to $750,000 $500,000 $100,000 to $750,000 $100,000 to $750,000 $100,000 to $750,000 $100,000 to $750,000 $100,000 to $750,000


     Deductible $1,000 & $10,000 (D)
$50,000 $1,000 & $10,000(D) $1,000 & $10,000(D) $1,000 & $10,000(D) $1,000 & $10,000(D) $1,000 & $10,000(D)


Property
     Limit(s) 90% Coinsurance No Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance


     Deductible $25,000 $50,000(C) $10,000(B) $10,000(B) $10,000(B) $10,000(B) $10,000(B)


Inland Marine
     Limit(s) Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount
     Deductible $25,000 $50,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000


Equipment Breakdown
     Limit(s) $163,759,997 $100,000,000  $162,145,510 $162,145,510 $162,145,510 $162,145,510 $162,145,510
     Deductible $25,000 $50,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000


Law Enforcement Liability
     Limit(s) $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 2,000,000 / No Agg Limit $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000
     Deductible $25,000 $50,000 $50,000 $25,000 $50,000 $25,000 $25,000


Public Entity Mgmt Liability
     Limit(s) $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$4,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000
     Deductible $25,000 $50,000 $100,000 $100,000 $50,000 $25,000 $25,000


Employment Practices Liability
     Limit(s) $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000
     Deductible $25,000.00 $50,000 $100,000 $100,000 $50,000 $25,000 $25,000


Umbrella Liability
     Limit(s) $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000
     Deductible $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0


Data Breach
     Limit(s) N/A N/A $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000
     Deductible N/A N/A $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000


Total premium $482,800.00 $559,345.00 $565,190.44 $575,130.76 $578,508.00 $599,568.00 $601,638.00


(A)SIR = Self Insured Retention.  Financially, the effect is same as a deductible.
(B) $25,000 deductible for flood & earthquake
(C) $50,000 deductible for flood & earthquake
(D) Deductible of $1,000 for forgery, & $10,000 for employee theft, funds transfer fraud, or computer fraud
(E)Automobile physical damage: With a deductible of $25,000 vehicles are insured if acquisition cost was $26,000 or greater.


Property & Casualty Insurance ‐ Fiscal Year 2014 Comparison of Offers







COVERAGE


General Liabilities
     Limit(s)
    Deductible


Employee Benefit Liab
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Automobile
Liability:


     Limit(s)


     Deductible


Physical Damage:


     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Crime
     Limit(s)


     Deductible


Property
     Limit(s)


     Deductible


Inland Marine
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Equipment Breakdown
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Law Enforcement Liabi
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Public Entity Mgmt Lia
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Employment Practices 
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Umbrella Liability
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Data Breach
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Total premium


PRU Option X PRU Option IX ACCG Option I PRU Option II PRU Option I PRU Option VII PRU Option VIII
OneBeacon/I.H. OneBeacon/I.H. ACCG ‐ IRMA Travelers Travelers Travelers/I.H. Travelers/I.H.


$2,000,000 / $2,000,000 $2,000,000 / $2,000,000 2,000,000 / No Agg Limit $2,000,000 / $2,000,000 $2,000,000 / $2,000,000 $2,000,000 / $2,000,000 $2,000,000 / $2,000,000
$25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000


$1,000,000 /$3,000,000 $1,000,000 /$3,000,000 Incl in Public Entity Mgt $1,000,000 /$3,000,000 $1,000,000 /$3,000,000 $1,000,000 /$3,000,000 $1,000,000 /$3,000,000
$1,000 $1,000 $25,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000


$1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000


$25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000


Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E)


$25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000


$100,000 to $750,000 $100,000 to $750,000 $500,000 $100,000 to $750,000 $100,000 to $750,000 $100,000 to $750,000 $100,000 to $750,000


$1,000 & $10,000(D) $1,000 & $10,000(D) $10,000 $1,000 & $10,000(D) $1,000 & $10,000(D) $1,000 & $10,000(D) $1,000 & $10,000(D)


90% Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance No Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance


$10,000(B) $10,000(B) $25,000(B) $50,000 (C) $25,000(C) $25,000(B) $25,000(B)


Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount
$10,000 $10,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000


$162,145,510 $162,145,510 $100,000,000  $163,759,997 $163,759,997 $163,759,997 $163,759,997
$10,000 $10,000 $25,000 $50,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000


$2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 2,000,000 / No Agg Limit $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000
$50,000 $25,000 $25,000 $50,000 $25,000 $50,000 $25,000


$2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$4,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000
$50,000 $50,000 $25,000 $50,000 $25,000 $100,000 $100,000


$2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000
$50,000 $50,000 $25,000 $50,000 $25,000 $100,000 $100,000


$3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000
$0 $0 $0 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000


$25,000 $25,000 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
$1,000 $1,000 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A


$602,128.12 $612,068.44 $639,724.00 $656,870.00 $682,402.00 $712,645.44 $722,585.76







COVERAGE


General Liabilities
     Limit(s)
    Deductible


Employee Benefit Liab
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Automobile
Liability:


     Limit(s)


     Deductible


Physical Damage:


     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Crime
     Limit(s)


     Deductible


Property
     Limit(s)


     Deductible


Inland Marine
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Equipment Breakdown
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Law Enforcement Liabi
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Public Entity Mgmt Lia
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Employment Practices 
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Umbrella Liability
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Data Breach
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Total premium


PRU Option XIII PRU Option VI PRU Option V
Travelers/C.N.A. Travelers/I.H. Travelers/I.H.


$2,000,000 / $2,000,000 $2,000,000 / $2,000,000 $2,000,000 / $2,000,000
$25,000 $25,000 $25,000


$1,000,000 /$3,000,000 $1,000,000 /$3,000,000 $1,000,000 /$3,000,000
$1,000 $1,000 $1,000


$1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000


$25,000 $25,000 $25,000


Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E)


$25,000 $25,000 $25,000


$100,000 to $750,000 $100,000 to $750,000 $100,000 to $750,000


$1,000 & $10,000(D) $1,000 & $10,000(D) $1,000 & $10,000(D)


90% Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance


$25,000(B) $25,000(B) $25,000(B)


Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount
$25,000 $25,000 $25,000


$163,759,997 $163,759,997 $163,759,997
$25,000 $25,000 $25,000


$2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000
$25,000 $50,000 $25,000


$2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000
$25,000 $50,000 $50,000


$2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000
$25,000 $50,000 $50,000


$3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000
$10,000 $10,000 $10,000


N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A


$749,093.00 $749,583.12 $759,523.44







 
 
 
To:    Steve Rapson 
 
From:    Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:    May 15, 2013 
 
Subject:  FY 2014 Property & Casualty Insurance 
 
The county enters into agreements for property and casualty insurance each fiscal year.  The nature of 
the insurance industry means it operates differently than many other industries, so the procurement 
process is also different.  Insurance brokers or agents provide a significant amount of service in the 
acquisition of annual insurance policies. 
 
Three brokers expressed an interest in providing insurance proposals.  One broker submitted 14 
options from four private insurance carriers.  In addition, the Association County Commissioners of 
Georgia’s Interlocal Risk Management Agency (ACCG‐IRMA) submitted two options for their self‐
insurance pool (please see the attached spread sheet).  The third broker provided an incomplete 
proposal on the due date, and was therefore disqualified from this competition. 
 
Early indications had been that premiums would increase significantly for the upcoming fiscal year.  
Offered prices are indeed higher, as had been predicted.  The Fiscal Year 2013 initial premium was 
$482,800.  The offered Fiscal year 2014 options range from $559,345 (a 16% increase) to $759,523.44 
(a 57% increase). 
 
In determining which option would be the best value for the county, staff compared similarities, 
differences, and prices.  Generally speaking, the offered limits of liability were the same as, or 
comparable to, the current year’s policy.  Aside from price, the greatest number of differences was in 
the deductibles. 
 
A first glance at the side‐by‐side comparison shows that the lowest‐price offer was from ACCG.  
However, deductibles in 10 of the 12 broad insurance categories would be increased by 100% or 
more.  The second ACCG option would increase only two deductibles (and decrease one), but increase 
the premium cost by 33%. 
 
Comparing the remaining options – the 14 offered by Public Risk Underwriters – one sees that seven 
involve OneBeacon, and the other seven involve Travelers.  While Travelers is the county’s current 
carrier, and has been for a number of years, their prices in all cases are higher than OneBeacon’s 
prices.  In addition, Travelers’ deductible amounts did not reflect an offset to higher prices. 
 







Options III and XIV offer basically identical terms.  Both would actually decrease current deductibles in 
four of the twelve broad categories of coverage.  These two options have more of the lowest 
deductibles than any of the other offers, including those that are higher priced.  With no material 
differences between Option III and Option XIV, one would conclude based on price that Option III is 
the best choice of the two. 
 
In comparing Option III with the four options that would cost less, the variance in deductible amounts 
would more than offset the price difference. 
 
After considering the relevant factors – limits of coverage, deductibles, and cost – I recommend Public 
Risk Underwriters’ Option III, which would be carried by OneBeacon at a cost of $599,568. 
 
Attachment 







COVERAGE Current ACCG Option II PRU Option XI PRU Option XII PRU Option IV PRU Option III  PRU Option XIV
Travelers ACCG ‐ IRMA OneBeacon/I.H. OneBeacon/I.H. OneBeacon OneBeacon OneBeacon/C.N.A


General Liabilities
     Limit(s) $2,000,000 / $2,000,000 2,000,000 / No Agg Limit $2,000,000 / $2,000,000 $2,000,000 / $2,000,000 $2,000,000 / $2,000,000 $2,000,000 / $2,000,000 $2,000,000 / $2,000,000
    Deductible $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000


Employee Benefit Liability
     Limit(s) $1,000,000 /$3,000,000 Incl in Public Entity Mgt $1,000,000 /$3,000,000 $1,000,000 /$3,000,000 $1,000,000 /$3,000,000 $1,000,000 /$3,000,000 $1,000,000 /$3,000,000
     Deductible $1,000 $25,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000


Automobile
Liability:


     Limit(s) $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000


     Deductible $25,000 $50,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000


Physical Damage:


     Limit(s) Specified Autos (E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E)


     Deductible $25,000 $50,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000


Crime
     Limit(s) $100,000 to $750,000 $500,000 $100,000 to $750,000 $100,000 to $750,000 $100,000 to $750,000 $100,000 to $750,000 $100,000 to $750,000


     Deductible $1,000 & $10,000 (D)
$50,000 $1,000 & $10,000(D) $1,000 & $10,000(D) $1,000 & $10,000(D) $1,000 & $10,000(D) $1,000 & $10,000(D)


Property
     Limit(s) 90% Coinsurance No Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance


     Deductible $25,000 $50,000(C) $10,000(B) $10,000(B) $10,000(B) $10,000(B) $10,000(B)


Inland Marine
     Limit(s) Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount
     Deductible $25,000 $50,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000


Equipment Breakdown
     Limit(s) $163,759,997 $100,000,000  $162,145,510 $162,145,510 $162,145,510 $162,145,510 $162,145,510
     Deductible $25,000 $50,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000


Law Enforcement Liability
     Limit(s) $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 2,000,000 / No Agg Limit $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000
     Deductible $25,000 $50,000 $50,000 $25,000 $50,000 $25,000 $25,000


Public Entity Mgmt Liability
     Limit(s) $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$4,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000
     Deductible $25,000 $50,000 $100,000 $100,000 $50,000 $25,000 $25,000


Employment Practices Liability
     Limit(s) $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000
     Deductible $25,000.00 $50,000 $100,000 $100,000 $50,000 $25,000 $25,000


Umbrella Liability
     Limit(s) $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000
     Deductible $10,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0


Data Breach
     Limit(s) N/A N/A $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000
     Deductible N/A N/A $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000


Total premium $482,800.00 $559,345.00 $565,190.44 $575,130.76 $578,508.00 $599,568.00 $601,638.00


(A)SIR = Self Insured Retention.  Financially, the effect is same as a deductible.
(B) $25,000 deductible for flood & earthquake
(C) $50,000 deductible for flood & earthquake
(D) Deductible of $1,000 for forgery, & $10,000 for employee theft, funds transfer fraud, or computer fraud
(E)Automobile physical damage: With a deductible of $25,000 vehicles are insured if acquisition cost was $26,000 or greater.


Property & Casualty Insurance ‐ Fiscal Year 2014 Comparison of Offers







COVERAGE


General Liabilities
     Limit(s)
    Deductible


Employee Benefit Liab
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Automobile
Liability:


     Limit(s)


     Deductible


Physical Damage:


     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Crime
     Limit(s)


     Deductible


Property
     Limit(s)


     Deductible


Inland Marine
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Equipment Breakdown
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Law Enforcement Liabi
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Public Entity Mgmt Lia
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Employment Practices 
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Umbrella Liability
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Data Breach
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Total premium


PRU Option X PRU Option IX ACCG Option I PRU Option II PRU Option I PRU Option VII PRU Option VIII
OneBeacon/I.H. OneBeacon/I.H. ACCG ‐ IRMA Travelers Travelers Travelers/I.H. Travelers/I.H.


$2,000,000 / $2,000,000 $2,000,000 / $2,000,000 2,000,000 / No Agg Limit $2,000,000 / $2,000,000 $2,000,000 / $2,000,000 $2,000,000 / $2,000,000 $2,000,000 / $2,000,000
$25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000


$1,000,000 /$3,000,000 $1,000,000 /$3,000,000 Incl in Public Entity Mgt $1,000,000 /$3,000,000 $1,000,000 /$3,000,000 $1,000,000 /$3,000,000 $1,000,000 /$3,000,000
$1,000 $1,000 $25,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000 $1,000


$1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000


$25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000


Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E)


$25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000


$100,000 to $750,000 $100,000 to $750,000 $500,000 $100,000 to $750,000 $100,000 to $750,000 $100,000 to $750,000 $100,000 to $750,000


$1,000 & $10,000(D) $1,000 & $10,000(D) $10,000 $1,000 & $10,000(D) $1,000 & $10,000(D) $1,000 & $10,000(D) $1,000 & $10,000(D)


90% Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance No Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance


$10,000(B) $10,000(B) $25,000(B) $50,000 (C) $25,000(C) $25,000(B) $25,000(B)


Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount
$10,000 $10,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000


$162,145,510 $162,145,510 $100,000,000  $163,759,997 $163,759,997 $163,759,997 $163,759,997
$10,000 $10,000 $25,000 $50,000 $25,000 $25,000 $25,000


$2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 2,000,000 / No Agg Limit $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000
$50,000 $25,000 $25,000 $50,000 $25,000 $50,000 $25,000


$2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$4,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000
$50,000 $50,000 $25,000 $50,000 $25,000 $100,000 $100,000


$2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000
$50,000 $50,000 $25,000 $50,000 $25,000 $100,000 $100,000


$3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000
$0 $0 $0 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000 $10,000


$25,000 $25,000 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
$1,000 $1,000 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A


$602,128.12 $612,068.44 $639,724.00 $656,870.00 $682,402.00 $712,645.44 $722,585.76







COVERAGE


General Liabilities
     Limit(s)
    Deductible


Employee Benefit Liab
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Automobile
Liability:


     Limit(s)


     Deductible


Physical Damage:


     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Crime
     Limit(s)


     Deductible


Property
     Limit(s)


     Deductible


Inland Marine
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Equipment Breakdown
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Law Enforcement Liabi
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Public Entity Mgmt Lia
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Employment Practices 
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Umbrella Liability
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Data Breach
     Limit(s)
     Deductible


Total premium


PRU Option XIII PRU Option VI PRU Option V
Travelers/C.N.A. Travelers/I.H. Travelers/I.H.


$2,000,000 / $2,000,000 $2,000,000 / $2,000,000 $2,000,000 / $2,000,000
$25,000 $25,000 $25,000


$1,000,000 /$3,000,000 $1,000,000 /$3,000,000 $1,000,000 /$3,000,000
$1,000 $1,000 $1,000


$1,000,000 $1,000,000 $1,000,000


$25,000 $25,000 $25,000


Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E) Specified Autos(E)


$25,000 $25,000 $25,000


$100,000 to $750,000 $100,000 to $750,000 $100,000 to $750,000


$1,000 & $10,000(D) $1,000 & $10,000(D) $1,000 & $10,000(D)


90% Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance 90% Coinsurance


$25,000(B) $25,000(B) $25,000(B)


Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount Equip schedule amount
$25,000 $25,000 $25,000


$163,759,997 $163,759,997 $163,759,997
$25,000 $25,000 $25,000


$2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000
$25,000 $50,000 $25,000


$2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000
$25,000 $50,000 $50,000


$2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000 $2,000,000 /$2,000,000
$25,000 $50,000 $50,000


$3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000 $3,000,000 /$3,000,000
$10,000 $10,000 $10,000


N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A


$749,093.00 $749,583.12 $759,523.44





		Purchasing- Fiscal Year 2014 ...ualty Agenda Request File

		Purchasing- Fiscal Year 2014 Property and Casualty Insurance Backup

		Purchasing- Fiscal Year 2014 Property and Casualty Insurance Backup

		Purchasing- Fiscal Year 2014 Property and Casualty Insurance Backup-1

		Purchasing- Fiscal Year 2014 Property and Casualty Insurance Backup-2

		Rec Grayscale





		Purchasing- Fiscal Year 2014 Property and Casualty Insurance Backup-1

		Purchasing- Fiscal Year 2014 Property and Casualty Insurance Backup-2

		Rec Grayscale










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Road Andy Adams


Approval of staff's request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Town of Tyrone, allowing for the County to resurface 


nine (9) roads over a three-year period of time within the Town of Tyrone, to provide labor and equipment at no cost to the Town of 


Tyrone, and to authorize the Chairman to execute said agreement.


The County routinely enters into intergovernmental agreements with its municipalities to perform work that is better handled by the 


County. 


 


The specific Intergovernmental Agreement under consideration would authorize County staff and equipment to be used within the Town 


of Tyrone in order to resurface nine (9) streets, for an of 2.8 miles, of town roads over a three-year period of time.  These streets are 


listed in the Special Stipulations Attachment to the agreement.  The aggregate length of this resurfacing work is approximately 1.58 miles. 


 


The agreement includes the provision that the Town of Tyrone will reimburse the County the cost of materials used in the performance of 


this work.  Fayette County will provide the staff and the equipment at no cost to the town for those services.  The work is to be performed 


during Fiscal Year 2014, 2015, and 2016. 


 


The Town of Tyrone approved this Street Resurfacing Agreement during the May 16, 2013 Tyrone Town Council meeting.


Approval of staff's request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the Town of Tyrone, allowing for the County to resurface 


nine (9) roads over a three-year period of time within the Town of Tyrone, to provide labor and equipment at no cost to the Town of 


Tyrone, and to authorize the Chairman to execute said agreement.


The cost for the County is for providing labor and equipment.  These costs will be paid out of the Road Department's existing budget. The 


Town of Tyrone will reimburse the County the cost of all materials used in performing the work.


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


This is an example of intergovernmental cooperation between Fayette County and the Town of Tyrone for the betterment of the citizens 


by providing safe and adequate streets.


ConsentThursday, June 13, 2013







STATE OF GEORGIA  


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


 


STREET RESURFACING AGREEMENT 


 


 AN AGREEMENT entered into this _______ day of ____________ 2013, by and between 


FAYETTE COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia, acting by and through its Board of 


Commissioners, hereinafter referred to as the “County”, and the Town of Tyrone, a political subdivision 


and municipality of the State of Georgia, acting by and through its Mayor and Council, hereinafter 


referred to as the Town, to provide for certain street work within the corporate limits of the Town. 


WITNESSETH: 


 WHEREAS, the County and the Town desire the proper resurfacing of certain streets within the 


corporate limits of the Town to promote adequate and safe means of transportation; and  


 WHEREAS, the County and the Town desire to coordinate their efforts and work together in the 


resurfacing of certain streets within the corporate limits of the Town, pursuant to their respective 


Resolutions. 


 NOW, THEREFORE, in and for the consideration of the premises and conditions as hereinafter 


provided, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, the parties do hereby agree as 


follows: 


1. 


 The County and the Town hereby agree to coordinate their efforts, as hereinafter provided, in the 


resurfacing of the streets that are listed on the attachment to this Agreement known as Special 


Stipulations. Said Special Stipulations are hereby adopted into this Agreement by this reference hereto. 


 


2. 


COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES 


 The County agrees to provide the labor and equipment, which it has available, for the resurfacing 


of the streets which have been identified on the Special Stipulations attachment. Any additional County 







Responsibilities not listed in this paragraph may be contained on the Special Stipulations attachment. The 


County shall perform all paving activities, excluding patching and milling.  The County may perform 


additional ancillary activities if requested by the Town and agreed to by the County.  Such activities may 


be performed by third-party vendors. The County will provide an estimate of the cost of these ancillary 


activities to the Town for their approval prior to the work being performed. 


3. 


TOWN RESPONSIBILITIES 


 The Town shall reimburse the County for all materials (i.e. asphalt and tack, including over-run 


quantities for leveling and topping) and shall pay the County for the costs of material within 30 days of 


invoice. All inadvertent overspray of tack (on curb and gutter, driveways, lawns sections, etc.) shall be 


cleaned up by the Town. The Town agrees to handle any prior local resident work notification within the 


work area, in conjunction with the County’s paving schedule. The Town is responsible for patch and 


repair of any affected areas, as well as the striping on any streets that require striping. The Town shall 


furnish staging/cleaning out areas each day for paving machine/material cleaning and storage. The Town 


shall reimburse the County the cost of any third-party services utilized to perform this work.  Third-party 


work activities may include, but not be limited to, striping, flagmen, milling, equipment rental, leased 


dump trucks, etc. 


4. 


INDEMNIFICATION 


 To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Town agrees to hereby and does defend, hold harmless 


and indemnify the County and its officers, directors, employees, agents and representatives from and 


against any and all claims, damages, demands, actions, judgments, losses, costs, penalties, liabilities, 


assessments and expenses including, but not limited to attorney’s fees, incurred or suffered by the County 


that arise out of, or result from, the performance of the Work, which are not incurred or suffered due to 


the negligence of the County. 


5. 


CITY STREETS 







 The County and the Town agree that streets listed on the Special Stipulations attachment are in 


the city limits of the Town, are part of the street system of the Town and as such shall be completely and 


solely within the Town’s jurisdiction and control. The resurfacing of the streets listed on the Special 


Stipulations attachment is at the direction of the Town and the County assumes no interest in the title of 


said street. In no manner shall the streets listed on the Special Stipulations attachment be deemed a 


County street. Unless otherwise agreed, the maintenance and repair of said streets shall be the sole 


responsibility of the Town. 


6. 


SECURING WORK SITE 


 The Town agrees to assist the County where possible to secure the work site and prevent the 


tampering, vandalism or theft of equipment, tools or materials left at the site by the County, its agents or 


employees, at the close of each working day. The County agrees to provide certified flaggers, and the 


Town will provide a pilot car if necessary, to alert motorists and ensure caution when work is underway 


in the work area. 


7. 


RIGHTS OF THE PROPERTY 


 The Town warrants that it owns or has rights to resurface the aforementioned streets listed on the 


Special Stipulations attachment and further warrants that said work will not violate any restrictions, 


covenants, local or state law. 


8. 


STARTING AND COMPLETION DATES 


 The County agrees to begin work on the project as soon as scheduled work permits, and to 


complete said project in a timely manner subject to inclement weather, existing obligations, and 


circumstances beyond control of the County, in which event the County shall commence or complete the 


project as soon as it may practicably do so. 


9. 


ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 







 Any additional terms and conditions which may exist between the parties may be found on the 


Special Stipulations attachment. To the extent that there may exist a conflict between the terms and 


conditions in this Agreement and the terms and conditions in the Special Stipulations attachment, the 


parties agree that any terms and conditions in the Special Stipulation attachment supersede any terms and 


conditions within this Agreement. 


 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, parties have hereunto set their hands and affixed their seals the day 


and year as first above written. 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


   By:  ________________________ 


           Steve Brown, Chairman 


(SEAL) 


Attest: 


 


________________________ 


County Clerk 


   CITY OF FAYETTEVILLE  


 


   By: _______________________  


          Eric Dial, Mayor of Tyrone 


(SEAL) 


Attest: 


________________________ 


Town Clerk 


   


 







 


Attachment A: 


 


SPECIAL STIPULATIONS 


PROJECT NUMBER T012345-TPW 


 


Streets to be resurfaced, on an annual basis, will be reviewed and updated according to condition, and are 


not to exceed three (3) miles in total aggregate length, unless special provisions are necessary and 


approved separately.  Initial priority list of streets is submitted below, with termini and mileage. 


 


FY14 


Berry Hill Lane (.3 mi) – Swanson Road 


Londonberry Court (.1 mi) – W. Crestwood Road 


Pyron Point (.1 mi) – W. Crestwood Road 


 


FY15 


Pointview Court (.1 mi) – Palmetto Road 


Handley Road (.5 mi) – Senoia Road to Tyrone Road 


Powers Court (.8 mi) – Senoia Road 


 


FY16 


Winfair Drive (.4 mi) – Senoia Road  


Rosewood Avenue (.2 mi) – Senoia Road 


Laurel Circle (.3 mi) – Senoia Road 


 


 





		Roads- Tyrone Street Resurfac...ement Agenda Request File

		Roads- Tyrone Street Resurfacing Agreement Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Sheriff's Office Major Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval of Sheriff Babb's decision to return a Fuel Truck, which was on loan to the Fayette County Sheriff's Office, to the Georgia 


Department of Pubic Safety Excess Property Program. 


With the dissolution of the Fayette County Sheriff's Office Aviation Unit, the Sheriff's Office will be returning the 1985 AM General 


M49A2C Fuel Truck bearing VIN # NK02VT052810547 to the Georgia Department of Public Safety Excess Property Program.


Approval of Sheriff Babb's decision to return a Fuel Truck, which was on loan to the Fayette County Sheriff's Office, to the Georgia 


Department of Pubic Safety Excess Property Program. 


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, June 13, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Sheriff's Office Major Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval of Sheriff Babb's decision to dispose of the Fayette County Sheriff's Office's 2007 Eurocopter AS350B2 Helicopter, with 


proceeds from the sale or trade of this aircraft to be placed into Equitable Sharing Funds to be used for law enforcement purposes.


With the dissolution of the Fayette County Sheriff's Office Aviation Unit, the Sheriff's Office is requesting to dispose of (sell/trade) one 


2007 Eurocopter AS350B2 Helicopter bearing Serial # 4188.  


 


This aircraft was purchased with Equitable Sharing Funds and any proceeds from the sale/trade of this aircraft must be placed into the 


originating funds to be used for law enforcement purposes. 


Approval of Sheriff Babb's decision to dispose of the Fayette County Sheriff's Office's 2007 Eurocopter AS350B2 Helicopter, with 


proceeds from the sale or trade of this aircraft to be placed into Equitable Sharing Funds to be used for law enforcement purposes.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, June 13, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Sheriff's Office Major Michelle Walker, if needed


Approval of Sheriff Babb's decision to dispose of numerous unusable uniforms and equipment items, and to dispose of said items in an 


appropriate manner.


The Fayette County Sheriff's Office has numerous unusable uniform items which include shirts, pants, belts, holsters and other pieces of 


damaged and unwearable uniform equipment.  These items are county property and must be disposed of or destroyed in an appropriate 


manner.


Approval of Sheriff Babb's decision to dispose of numerous unusable uniforms and equipment items, and to dispose of said items in an 


appropriate manner.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


ConsentThursday, June 13, 2013





